Q> Neath Port Talbot R, oo »)) AGENDA
== C(astell-nedd Port Talbot Seuth Wiest Waies

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT
COMMITTEE

9.30 AM THURSDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2024

MICROSOFT TEAMS MEETING / COUNTY HALL, COUNCIL
CHAMBER AT PEMBROKESHIRE COUNCIL

All mobile telephones to be switched to silent for the duration of the
meeting

Webcasting/Hybrid Meetings
This meeting will be recorded for broadcast via the Council’s Internet Site.
By patrticipating you are consenting to being filmed and the possible use
of those images and sound recordings for training purposes.

1. Welcome and Chairs Announcements
2. Declarations of Interests
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 10)

4.  Regional Transport Plan (RTP) Policy Framework (Draft) and
Consultation Update (Pages 11 - 66)

5. Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Regional
Strategic Equality Plan (Pages 67 - 132)

6.  South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Annual Return
2023/24 (Pages 133 - 144)

7. Forward Work Programme (Pages 145 - 148)

8. Urgent Items




Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairperson pursuant to
Section 100BA(6)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).

W.Bramble
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Friday, 6 September 2024

Committee Membership:

Chairperson: Councillor R.Stewart

Vice Councillor D.Price
Chairperson:

Councillors: J.Harvey and S.K.Hunt,

National Park
Representatives: A.Edwards and D.Clements

Co-Opted N.Wooding, J.Williams, P.Boyle, E.Evans and
Members: S.Toombs



Agenda Iltem 3

-1 -
South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee

(Via Microsoft Teams)

Members Present: 30 July 2024
Chairperson: Councillor R.Stewart

Vice Chairperson: Councillor D.Price

Councillors: J.Harvey and J.Hurley

National Park A.Edwards and D.Clements

Representatives:
Co-Opted Members:  S.Toombs

Officers In M.Nicholls, W.Bramble, K.Jones, G.Jones,

Attendance: T.Jones, C.Griffiths, C.Moore, K.Tillman,
S.Aldred-Jones, P.Relf, S.Davies, R.Moxey,
A.Williams and C.Plowman

1. Welcome and Chairs Announcements

The Chairperson welcomed everyone to the meeting.

2. Declarations of Interests

There were no declarations of interests received.

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on the 23 May 2024 were approved
as an accurate record.

4. Sub-Committee Update - Economic Wellbeing Shared Prosperity
Delivery Update

Members received an update on the implementation of the UK
Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) in South West Wales, which was a key
pillar of delivery for the Regional Economic Delivery Plan.

300724 Page 3



-2

Officers explained that the delivery mechanism that the South West
Wales region had opted for was to use an anchor project approach, in
which each Local Authority had its indicative allocation. It was noted
that trough this approach, there was a link back to core provision in
each Local Authority, particularly where there was small business
support resource available; building on that core area of working,
using Shared Prosperity Funds to augment the support and create
budgets for grants to be used by businesses and communities.

It was highlighted that creating the Economic Delivery Plan assisted
with progress when the Shared Prosperity Fund was announced; it
made it easier to direct the funding into pressures that Officers were
aware of across the region.

In regard to the spend figures, Officers confirmed that they were still
working to the original profiles, which were currently out of date;
whilst the spend figures looked as though they were substantially
behind, they were proportionate to the regions current position. It was
stated that the delay in the approval of the programme meant that
progress was approximately two quarters behind; Officers had been
verbalising the need to extend the programme by at least two
quarters in order to maximise the outputs and the delivery of the
programme.

The Committee was informed that delivery was extensively reported
at local level. It was mentioned that there was a number of outcomes
that were currently being achieved across the region, particularly
regarding business development; there were a large number of
businesses that were being directly supported and the affects were
being noticed and felt by the businesses.

It was highlighted that the Chair of the South West Wales Corporate
Joint Committee had written to UK Government requesting additional
time to ensure finalisation of the projects.

Members expressed that it had been demonstrated regionally how
positive this model was and its suitability for running schemes such
as this; it had been made clear that they did not want to revert back to
the previous model that was used.

It was queried if any feedback had been received in regard to
amending the timescales of the programme. It was confirmed that
there had been no formal response as of yet, however the
interactions with both Welsh and UK Governments had been

300724 P ag e 4



-3-

progressive; the Chair could not guarantee an extended timescale,
however was hopeful that the response would be positive.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Corporate Plan 2023-2028 - Corporate Priorities for 2024/25

The Committee received draft version two of the Corporate Plan
2023-2028, which was subject to consultation in January 2024.

It was noted that the document was presented to the South West
Wales Overview and Scrutiny Sub Committee on 16 July 2024, and
there had been no significant amendments received as a result of
scrutiny.

Officers referred to the Corporate Priorities for 2024/25 which were
detailed as an appendix to the circulated report.

RESOLVED: That the draft version two of the Corporate Plan 2023 —
2028 be approved.

Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strateqgy (Draft)

Officers provided an update to the development of the Joint Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion Strategy (Draft) and Regional Strategic
Equality Plan (SEP), which was a requirement of Corporate Joint
Committees.

It was stated that the Chief Executive of the South West Wales
Corporate Joint Committee had met with the Commissioner to go
through the Strategy; the Strategic Equality Plans of the four Local
Authorities had been used to underpin this document.

Members were informed that the version of the Strategy contained
within the circulated report was draft, as it required further
development; Officers will be keeping in contact with the
Commissioner to make sure that they were content with the way in
which the Strategy was being developed. It was confirmed that once
completed, the Strategy will be brought back to a future meeting for
endorsement.

Members welcomed the blending of aspirations of Welsh speakers
within the document.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

300724 Page 5



-4 -

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Appointment of
the Chief Executive Officer

Members received a report regarding the appointment of the Chief
Executive Officer for the South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee.

It was explained that it had previously been agreed that the role of the
Chief Executive Officer would rotate between the current Chief
Executives of the four Local Authorities within the region. Officers
highlighted that William Bramble, of Pembrokeshire County Council,
had undertaken the role of Chief Executive Officer for the previous
year; it was proposed that Wendy Walters, of Carmarthenshire
County Council, be appointed as Chief Executive Officer from 1
November 2024.

The Committee expressed their thanks to Will Bramble for the
support and efforts over the last year.

RESOLVED: That Wendy Walters, Chief Executive of
Carmarthenshire County Council, be appointed as Chief Executive of
the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee from the 1%
November 2024.

Quarter 1 Financial Monitoring 2024/25

Officers presented the Quarter 1 Financial Monitoring for year ended
2024/25.

It was highlighted that the budget set for the financial year required a
levy on the individual Local Authorities, which was allocated on a
population basis; the total combined levy was set at £555,978.

Members were informed that the forecast outturn, as detailed in
Appendix A of the circulated report, identified a total surplus of
£132,673.

It was noted that there was a predicated underspend regarding the
financial services of the Corporate Joint Committee; this wasn’t
originally anticipated and may change in the future as the various
work streams progress and the workload increases.

A discussion took place in regard to the four work streams; it was
currently predicated that the workstreams will commit the full
expenditure that had been allocated. However, it was noted that this
was difficult to accurately judge this early on in the year. Reference

300724 Page 6



-5-

was made to the additional funding from Welsh Government to
support the delivery of the Regional Transport Plan; the transport
work stream was noted to be delivering a significant amount through
the year.

Officers confirmed that projecting a surplus was a positive position to
be in as it allows for further development of the South West Wales
Corporate Joint Committee going forward.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Forecast Outturn and Pre-Audit Annual Return 2023/24

The Committee received the Forecast Outturn and the Pre-Audit
annual return for year ended 2023/24.

It was explained that Corporate Joint Committees were obligated,
under legislation, to produce annual accounts; however, due the size
of the turnover of the organisation, which was below £2.5million, it
meant that there were fewer reporting requirements, and a full
statement of accounts was not needed.

Appendix A of the circulated report detailed the Forecast Outturn
summary. It was noted that the four workstreams did not draw on as
much budget last year as they were still developing at the time; there
were also underspends in other areas which were highlighted in the
report.

Officers explained that the current financial position of the South
West Wales Corporate Joint Committee meant that as the
workstreams develop further, there were reasonable provisions
already in place for them to draw on; this will help to avoid a
significant increase of the Local Authority levy, whilst still supporting
the development of the South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee.

A discussion took place in regard to the Annual Return, which was
detailed in Appendix B of the circulated report; this was a replication
of the figures that were report in Appendix A, however it was detailed
in the required Annual Return format. It was highlighted that the
Annual Return required auditing and verification; firstly, through
internal verification, which had been completed by Pembrokeshire
Councils internal audit team. The next stage was for this to be sent
onto Audit Wales for an overall verification; once completed they will
issue an audit certificate and it will be brought to a future meeting.

300724 Page 7



10.

11.

-6 -

Officers mentioned that by internal audit starting the bulk of this work,
it reduced the level of work required to be carried out by external
audit and also helped financially.

RESOLVED: That the receipt of the Forecast Outturn and the Pre-
Audit annual return for year ended 2023/24, be approved.

Private Sector Advisory Board Update - Recruitment of Advisors

An update was provided to Members on the status to recruit
additional advisors to form the Private Sector Advisory Board (PSAB)
to the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee.

The circulated report included the names of the private sector
advisors that were appointed, in October 2022, to sit on the PSAB;
the aim was to populate the Board up to its full extent of 12 members.
It was noted that Officers had sought expressions of interest from
constituent Local Authorities and by way of advert; at the time of this
meeting, the advert was closed. The Committee was informed that a
number of expressions of interest had been received, and Officers
were currently going through the longlist to shortlist process; this
process was likely to be completed shortly, and the details of the
shortlist will be presented at the September 2024 meeting of the
South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee for formal
endorsement. It was added that once this had been completed, the
PSAB can be utilised to its potential going forward.

It was highlighted that the hopes were to have a full spread of
advisors from all of the key sectors to ensure that the South West
Wales Corporate Joint Committee received a range of advice. The
Chief Executive of the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee
mentioned that this was achievable based on the expression of
interest that had been received.

Members were informed that the next step following this process was
to identify a representative from the South West Wales Corporate
Joint Committee for the Western Gateway Partnership.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Forward Work Programme

A discussion took place in regard to the transport workstream,
specifically the link between the Regional Transport Plan and the bus
franchising process. Concerns were raised in regard to the

300724 Page 8



12.

-7 -

timeframes of these pieces of work, and the need for Officers to look
into when information is presented to Members.

The Forward Work Programme was noted.

Urgent ltems

There were no urgent items received.

CHAIRPERSON

300724 Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig Ag e n d a I te m 4
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for ))))
South West Wales
SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE (SWWCJC)

12" September 2024

Report of the Chief Executive

Report Title: Regional Transport Plan (RTP) Policy Framework (Draft) &
Consultation Update

Purpose of Report To update Members of the South West
Wales  Corporate  Joint  Committee
(SWWCJC) on the progress associated with
the Regional Transport Plan policy
framework together with the revised
programme of work to develop and deliver
the Regional Transport Plan (RTP).

Further to the endorsement from the
Regional Transport Sub Committee and

Overview and Scrutiny Sub Committee;

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that Members of the
South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee (SWWCJC) endorse and
approve the following ;

1. Note the verbal progress reports
from officers on the RTP
development workstreams

2. Approve the Regional Transport Plan
policy framework

3. Approve the revised RTP
development work programme

Report Author Stuart Davies Head of Highways &
Transportation, City & County of Swansea
Council

Mark Wade Director of Place, City & County
of Swansea Council

Finance Officer

Chris Moore

Legal Officer

Craig Griffiths

Swansea Council Carmarthenshire

/ “l“".ﬂ k(/‘ Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir
| A \Y/

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot NS Bannau
b w Brycheiniog q

wll “1‘




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

1.

2.

Introduction:

The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) has been mandated to
produce a Regional Transport Plan (RTP) for the region by Welsh Government, in
conformity with the Transport (Wales) Act (2006) and to complement Liwybr Newydd:
Wales Transport Strategy (2021).

Following the successful approval of the Implementation Plan by Welsh Government
prior to Christmas 2023 the region submitted the Case for Change as approved by this
Committee on 215t February 2024.

Welsh Government is not proposing to offer formal feedback on the Case for Change,

but officials have indicated their broad support for the Case for Change and advised
the SWWCJC accordingly.

Progress:

2.1 Data Book and Accessibility Analysis

To aid the development of the RTP a ‘data book’ that sets out a quantitative analysis
of various data sources has been produced including the regional indices of multiple
deprivation (IMD), 2021 census population and transport information and information
on environmental matters.

To support the analysis for the RTP officers have produced an analysis of accessibility
by active travel, bus & rail and car to several key destinations across the region. This
information when used in conjunction with the data book forms the broad basis on
which policy requirements and schemes / interventions will be assessed.

2.2 Draft Regional Transport Plan Progress

The draft RTP continues to be developed. To ensure progress is made the policy
aspects of the RTP have been developed in advance of the RTDP which is discussed
below. The draft policy framework is appended to this report (Appendix A).

The policy framework follows the Welsh Transport Strategy core priorities of themes of
(i) reducing the need to travel (ii) allowing people and goods to move easily from door
to door by accessible, sustainable transport and (iii) encouraging people to make the
change to more sustainable transport. Within these three priorities specific modes of
travel and region-specific requirements covering, for example, tourism related tourism
and the effect of the City Deal and Freeport initiatives on transport are explored.

2.3 Draft Regional Transport Delivery Plan Progress and Intervention Assessment

Matrix
(I«\! \g‘ gyrgm . ‘Cygor B Ga"i n Cyngor Castel-nedd Port Tabot I\ Bannau
¥ wansea Counci : AL ML
3 < Carmarthenshire Nosth Pert Talht | w7 Brycheiniog
-”“ :/_ County Counci y Ve albot Counc ‘ J 2
- Page 12 \




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

The Regional Transport Delivery Plan (RTDP) will set out the region’s aspiration for
specific schemes and interventions. The RTP guidance sees the RTDP as the region’s
recommended programme for investment. All specific schemes and interventions, if
funding is allocated, will remain subject to further development under the Weltag
process and the tests of value for money.

The RTDP requires an assessment matrix that will provide an evidence-based
approach to scheme selection. The assessment matrix has been developed and will
be populated with the details of specific schemes and interventions which will be
assessed for deliverability and subject to both qualitative and quantitative analysis.
The analysis will ensure that a programme of deliverable and worthy interventions
forms the RTDP.

As technical work on scheme development continues, officers will provide a verbal
update to the CJC on progress together with a presentation on the detail of the
proposed assessment matrix which the CJC is asked to note.

3. Timescales:

Officers are currently reviewing the programme to deliver the RTP to reflect availability
of supporting information and review of approval processes.

There are a number of unforeseen influences impacting on progress:

e General election and delayed informal consultation — consultation outcome
report not available until mid-September.

e More complex metro programme — issues of data availability and scheme
revisions.

e Lack of scheme development due to Southwest Wales not being subject to a
“Burns Commission”.

e Awaiting further data inputs from Transport for Wales (TfW).

e Cabinet and Council approvals for each Authority within the region will be
required prior to final submission in the spring of 2025.

The proposed programme milestone amendments are set out below and have recently
been discussed with Transport for Wales, who have acknowledged the challenging
timeline.

The SWWCJC is asked to approve the proposed revisions which provide for a draft
RTP and RTDP to be submitted to the Welsh Government in December 2024. Formal
Statutory consultation will commence in January 2025, resulting in the final plan
submission in June 2025.

. / T -

o \gs g&g:;::go*::; Cyngor Sir Gar n Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot m E‘“"};“! :

i '“!  Carmarthenshire dba BT es g W Brycheinios

)2 X =" County Counci % sl % ~ '3
P 13 P




jabl
Q

D

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

»»

Activity Timeline (Programme)

Oct23 | Nov-23 | Dec23 | Jan-24 | Feb-24 | Mar24 | Apr-24 | May-24 | Jun-24 | Jul-24 | Aug-24 | Sep-24 | Oct24 | Nov-24 | Dec-24 | Jan-25 | Feb-25 | Mar-25 | Apr-25 | May-25 | Jun-25 | Jul-25 | Aug-25
Activity timeline
2JC to submit implementation plan | 34140023
WG completed
CJC to submit RTP Case for Change »0Feh
including SMART abjectives) to WG Cornpleeted
ZJC to submit initial draft of RTP, Subrrit palicy
O WBA and RTDP to WG [before Upcte &
oublic consultation) Fe?d?éck
2JC to submit final draft of RTP,
F— WBA and RTDP to WG
S
Sovernance (CJC and Councils) ol
ZJC to submit final RTP, WBA and
RM0P 10 WG
WG decision on approval of RTP. Wi
Jevelop a Monitoring & Evaluation
Flan
) k«"* Cyngor Abertawe Cy"90f5i"555 n Cyngor Castellnedd Port Talbot Ny Bannau
\: Swansea Council cérmartl&onshi_r]e w Neath Port Talbot Coun W Brychelmog
2 VW =" County Counci — i

Porc Conediacthol

A"_o_lﬂ Penfro

Pembrokeshire Coast
National Park




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

4. Consultation and stakeholder engagement:

The development of an engagement plan has previously been documented in the
approved Implementation Plan, and then presented in the approved Case for Change
document.

As noted at the May 2024 meeting of the CJC, informal public consultation on the vision
for the RTP and the Case for Change together with the current state of the transport
network was undertaken from July 15th to August 26th, 2024 (Delayed due to General
Election).

The public consultation has been supported by briefings to elected Members across
the region and to Community Council representatives.

The initial public response rate is judged by officers to be at a level where meaningful
conclusions can be drawn from the responses made.

A full report on the recent informal public consultation will be published and a verbal
update on matters emerging from the consultation provided to the CJC.

In parallel to the informal public consultation a series of themed workshops with
technical and subject matter expert stakeholders have been scheduled throughout
September 2024.

Please see the stakeholder engagement map figure 1.

Please note, the list of cohorts mentioned is not exhaustive, and the region is actively
encouraging everyone to engage in the development of the plan.

The next stage of the process will be to undertake statutory public consultation over
the Winter 24/25 period.

The current stakeholder engagement schedule is noted in (Appendix B). Timelines
may be subject to variation as the programme progresses.

irsogy / 2 a Q
ST \g& g&g:;::é:::: Cyngor Sir Gar n Cyngor Castellnedd Port Talbot [ Em“};“! )
'“! Carmarthenshire Alasth Dret Talhid Coiincd W Brycheiniog
e / County Counci w Veath Port Talbot Counc J 31

P 15 P




9T abed

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

Cyd-bwyligor Corfforedig ))))

Figure 1. Stakeholder engagement map

Road Haulage Association
Road Haulage Companies
Freight Reform

South Wales Transport
AA

RAC

Logistics UK

Dyfed Powys Police
South Wales Police

Mid & West Wales Fire
Wales Ambulance Service
HM Coastguard

Brecon Beacons

Mountain Rescue

Swansea Bay UHB
Swansea Bay Public Health
Hywel Dda UHB

Swansea Bay City Deal
Celtic Freeport
Enterprise Zones
Chamber of Commerce
Sustrans

Road Haulage
Companies

Health and

Economic

Elected Members

&

Community Councils

Development

4 The Region
Tourism

Local Authorities
RWE

Wales & West Utilities

« e e e e

Protected
Groups

Physical Disability
Age

Learning Disability
Religion

etc

‘\%

South West Wales

Emergency Servicest——— Regional Transport Plan
Stakeholder Route Map \

Consultation

Public

e o e e e

Active Travel
Groups

|

Sustrans
Visit Wales
Local Authorities
Ramblers Association
Cycling UK

Confederation of Passenger Transport
Community Transport Providers

Local Authorities

Private Coach Companies
South Wales Transport
DANSA

First Cymru

Environment

/

Education
Providers

Rail

Operators

« Transport for Wales

Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir Gl
Swansea Council Carmarthenshire

County Council

ﬁ Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

Neath Port Talbot Coundl
>z

Natural Resources Wales
CADW

Friends of the Earth
Chamber of Commerce
Local Authorities
Environmental Health
Pollution Control

Flood Defence

Coastal

Schools
Further Education
Higher Education

Transport for Wales
Network Rail

Rail Delivery Group
Grand Union Trains
SWW Rail Partnership
Great Western Railway
Rail Forum UK
Deutsche Bahn

.h Bannau

Brycheiniog

Porc Conediaothol
Arfordir Peniro

Pombrokeshire Coost
Notional Park



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

5. Financial Impacts:
The SWWCJC has allocated funding to assist with the development of the RTP.
Welsh Government made £125k available in 2023-24 with a further £100k in 2024-25.

The full cost of the RTP is yet to be determined but it remains clear that further funding
will be required.

The funding will need to be provided to enable the plan to be progressed and this will
need to be identified and allocated through ongoing discussion with Welsh
Government.

6. Integrated Impact Assessment:

The CJC is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-
economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have
due regard to the need to:

¢ Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Acts.

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

e Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-economic
disadvantage

e Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language

e Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

e Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.

In recognition of the above duties, the CJC has adopted an Integrated Impact
Assessment (IIA) Tool which allows for a two stage approach to be undertaken to
measure any potential impact of its decisions.

Following the consultation undertaken during January 2024 on the proposed
actions to deliver the well-being objectives, the findings were incorporated
within an Integrated Impact Assessment (I1A) and the Corporate Plan updated
and approved as version 002. Whilst the actions were subject to amendment the
well-being objectives remain unchanged.

=
/ )
#OOe

& S Condd Gib n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
. Swansea Council 2 LBV LaxCiFNEUl FOIT 1 a0k
2l AN Carmarthenshire N S
-’? :/_ County Counci P% 17 alt OUNC

N Bannau
W Brycheiniog 1




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan
includes the CJC’s Equality Objective which is set out below for ease of reference:

“To deliver a more equal South West Wales by 2035 by contributing towards:

(a)The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aim of
eliminating inequality caused by poverty;

(b)The achievement of the Equality statement set out in Llwybr Newydd which is to
make our transport services and infrastructure accessible and inclusive by aiming
to remove the physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic and
economic barriers that prevent people from using sustainable transport, and

(c)The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aims of cohesive
communities that are resilient, fair and equal and where everyone is able to
participate in political, public and everyday life. There will be no room for racism
and / or discrimination of any kind.”

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Alignment with CJC Corporate Plan 2023-2028 and the identified CJC Well-being
objectives:

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies
in Wales must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means
the process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being
of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle,
aimed at achieving the ‘well-being goals’.

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan
contains the CJC’s well-being objectives and frames the corporate direction of travel.
To this end, it is considered that the recommendation(s) contained within this report
align(s) to the corporate policy framework of the CJC as set out within its Corporate
Plan.

Well-Being Objective 2

“To produce a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales that is founded on
collaboration and enables the delivery of a transport system which is good for our
current and future generations of people and communities, good for our environment
and good for our economy and places (rural and urban).”

. / T -

o \gs g&g:;::go*::; Cyngor Sir Gar n Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot m E‘“"};“! :

i '“!  Carmarthenshire dba BT es g W Brycheinios

)2 X =" County Counci w sl % ~ '2
Pa 8 L



https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

The Integrated Impact Assessment (II1A) (Appendix C) associated with the
Corporate Plan has been utilised to inform the draft policy framework. An
informal consultation was undertaken during the period of 15" July — 26"
August 2024, the findings will aid the preparation for a formal consultation on
the Regional Transport Plan and assist in the development of a fuller
integration impact assessment that will be created when the Regional
Transport Plan is ready for approval.

7. Workforce Impacts:

The regional support team is now fully resourced, following the appointment of an
additional officer in July 2024.

8. Legal Impacts:

The production of the draft RTP and RTDP is the third stage of producing a Regional
Transport Plan which is a duty placed on the CJC by Welsh Government pursuant to
the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.

The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Regulations came into force on
1st April 2021 the timeframes for the discharging of specific functions.

9. Risk Management Impacts:

None

10.Consultation:

Whilst no formal consultation is required for the purpose of this update report, an
informal consultation was undertaken (15" July — 26" August 2024) on the Case for
Change. Over eight hundred responses were received.

The findings will aid the preparation for the formal consultation on the Regional
Transport Plan due early in 2025.

11.Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To meet the duty placed on the Corporate Joint Committee for South West Wales
(SWWCJC).

12.Implementation of Decision:

Following the three day call in period.

/ )
#OOe

4 s A .
k( > gyrgor Abért?\mla Cyngor Sir Gar n Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot N Bannmg .
AN wansea Louncll e marthenshire W Bl)'chemlog 3

:/ County Counci NN/ Neath Port Talbot Cou ‘
PaJE 19 5




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

Appendices:
Appendix A — Regional Transport Plan (RTP) Policy Framework
Appendix B — Stakeholder Engagement Schedule

Appendix C — Integrated Impact Assessment associated to the Corporate Plan
2023-2028 ver002

List of Background Papers:

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)
23" May 2024

South West Wales Regional Transport Plan — Programme Update

SWWCJC - RTP Update May 24 230524 Final.pdf (npt.gov.uk)

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)
Regional Transport Sub Committee 2"4 September 2024

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Regional Transport Sub-Committee -
Monday, 2nd September, 2024 11.30 am

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)
Overview and Scrutiny Sub Committee 3rd September 2024

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Overview and Scrutiny Sub-
Committee - Tuesday, 3rd September, 2024 2.00 pm

e k«“ gyfgorﬂbéﬂawf Cy"9°'5i'555 n Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot m Bannau
: 2 N wansea LOUNCl - carmarthenshire - w Brycheiniog 4

"_/_ County Council N/ Neath Port Talbot Coundi
Page 20



https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/s100216/SWWCJC%20-%20RTP%20Update%20May%2024%20230524%20Final.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=529
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=529
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=499
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=499

Policy Framework

The policy context of the RTP

The RTP is designed primarily to bring a regional focus to the delivery of the Wales
Transport Strategy, Liwybr Newydd, 2021.

The formal Welsh Government guidance for the development of RTP sets out that the
RTP sets the policies for implementing LIwybr Newydd at a regional level. The policy
of Liwybr Newydd is based upon a vision for an accessible, sustainable, and efficient
transport system across all of Wales.

The Regional Transport Plan for Southwest Wales (“the RTP”) has been developed to
ensure that the region has the transport network that it desires. The transport network
is at the heart of the region; it takes us to work, education and play across the region
and further afield.

The context is set locally by Swansea Bay City Deal, a £1.2billion investment in the
region’s economy and social infrastructure and by the aspiration shown by the region’s
local authorities. It is essential that complementary private investment is attracted to
the region at a faster rate to ensure we have the economic activity and infrastructure
to achieve great things. We also have a series of vital public services such as
hospitals, local healthcare facilities, schools, colleges, universities together with retail
sites, leisure facilities and employment sites that we need to access. Our city and
town centres are vital hubs in our transport network and communities that they serve.

Nationally, Liwybr Newydd: the Wales transport strategy 2021 sets a new direction for
transport in terms of both services and infrastructure and in terms of the movement of
people and also goods. Liwybr Newydd sets out that in the changing world that
surrounds our transport system, that the system must be accessible, sustainable and
efficient. This means a transport system that is good for people and communities,
good for the environment, good for the economy and places and supports a thriving
Welsh language and culture. It should also ensure that the transport legacy we leave
for future generations is tangible and capable of continued operation.

The transport system we have doesn’t operate in isolation. It is driven by the land-use
and environmental choices we face and the level of economic activity we have. It is
also shaped by the communities that we are all part of; our needs and aspiration for
transport determine the level of use now and into the future. The system will need to
meet these changing requirements and give us the capability to reach our potential
whether individually or as a wider community.

Page 21



To shape the RTP we have developed a vision that translates Llwybr Newydd into
region specific aims to give shape to the RTP policy framework.

1. To have a transport system that provides access to opportunity and the social fabric
of the region.

2. To have a transport system that recognises the diverse communities of the region
and their varying transport needs.

3. To have a transport system that seeks to decarbonise its impact at the best rate
possible.

4. To have a transport system that recognises a hierarchy of travel modes appropriate
to geographic location and cost.

5. To have a transport system that is designed to allow sustainable delivery in other
policy areas.

6. To promote sustainable travel choices wherever practical.

Set out below are the proposed policies that will provide the framework for the RTP.
The precise wording of each policy is under development by officers and will reflect the
outcomes of the recent public consultation and the ongoing stakeholder engagement.

Liwybr Newydd Priority 1

Liwybr Newydd Priority 1 sets out a clear vision to reduce the need for travel by bringing
services and also facilities closer to people. The polices we propose in this area will
set our general approach to reducing travel requirements by making access to local
services better, by ensuring transport that stimulates economic activity is delivered in
the most suitable way and by ensuring that the specific transport challenges our rural
communities face are met.

Figure 1. Liwybr Newydd Priority 1 Summary

To improve active travel

¥ infrastructure to local services
in the first instance. Where
this is not feasible enable
residents to make sustainable
travel choices.

[d To have a transport system

¥ that supports the growth and
B development of sustainable

& economic activity in the
region.

RT

To improve
physical
connectivity
through
enhancing
active travel
infrastructure
to local
services.

1l
~N|
=
m
C
L
a

PLAN AIMS

i
-
Q
0
%)
L
O
O
<
pa
<

REGIONAL TRANSPO
REGIONAL TRANSPORT

Page 22



The proposed policies:

Policy 1 — Reducing the need to travel

Policy 2 — Making local transport infrastructure and services fit for purpose
Policy 3 — Transport that enables economic development

Policy 4 — Transport and land use planning, including the Freeport and major
developments

Policy 5 — Rural Areas and transport provision

Liwybr Newydd Priority 2

Liwybr Newydd Priority 2 provides the overarching context for investment in our
transport system. The policies will provide the region’s view on how the transport
system delivers for our communities and how choice of travel mode may be influenced.

The policies proposed also reflect the need to ensure that the transport system
decarbonises and minimises the wider impacts of demand for travel. To support these
overarching policy objectives, a series of mode-specific policies will provide the detail
required to support choices on future investment.

Whilst the RTP cannot promote rail schemes nor seek infrastructure maintenance
funds through the RTP they form essential elements of the provision of the transport
network that in policy terms the RTP will be required to comment upon.

Figure 2. Liwybr Newydd Priority 2 Summary

To have a transport system
that recognises the
hierarchy of travel modes

4. Private motor vehicles
(lowest priority).

To have a transport system
that recognises the diverse
communities of the region
and their varying transport
needs.

service and
infrastructure
improvements.

transport
services and
infrastructure.

0 Z

- . Sl identified in Liwybr Newydd,
(>/ Allow people To e_lchleve a ol \hich is as follows:

v and goods to shift away N 1. Walking and cycling

E move easily from private % (highest priority)

C Liwybr from door to car use to Y 2. Public transport (rai,

0 Newydd door by more S bus, community transport
Z briorit accessible, sustainable @d and taxis)

3 2 Y sustainable VR S 3. Ultra-low emission

F and efficient through 2 vehicles

- >

n o

¢ O

W L

U o

u

REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN AIMS

o)
Z
<
L
-
m
<
<
<
l_
%)
-
N
L
-
o
)
)
LUl
)
)
<
Z
<

Page 23



The proposed policies:

Policy 6 — The transport system reflecting local communities in Southwest Wales

Policy 7 — Travel Mode choice

Policy 8 — Decarbonisation and environmental impacts

Policy 9 — Walking, Cycling and Active Travel
Policy 10 — Rail
Policy 11 — Bus

Policy 12 — Facilitating of ultra-low emission vehicles

Policy 13 — Roads and road users

Policy 14 — Ports, freight and logistics

Policy 15 — Access to aviation services, local aviation infrastructure

Policy 16 — Maintenance of existing infrastructure

Liwybr Newydd Priority 3

The aim of Llwybr Newydd Priority 3 is to promote the availability and use of
sustainable travel choices wherever possible. The geography and demographics of
Southwest Wales are such that sustainable travel will, in some instances, not be
appropriate for everyone; the policies in the area will be designed to encourage and
enable sustainable travel choices. The issues to be considered by the policies are far
wider than simply providing access to the most sustainable mode of travel for a
particular journey. They range from how people plan their journey and the use of
technology to provide information and assistance, how access to information can be
supported without access to current technology, to the cost of travel on an attractive

network.
Figure 3. Liwybr Newydd Priority Summary

To enable
our
residents
to change
their travel
behaviour
to use low-
carbon,
sustainable
transport.

Encourage
people to
make the
change to

more
sustainable
transport.

Llwybr

Newydd

Priority
3

i
-
Q
)
%)
L
O
O
<
pa
<

REGIONAL
TRANSPORT PLAN

Page 24

REGIONAL

Make sustainable transport
more available, attractive and
affordable.

To promote sustainable travel
choice wherever possible.




The proposed policies:

Policy 17 - An available, attractive, accessible and affordable transport network
Policy 18 — Transport information provision

Policy 19 — Use of technology to deliver transport outcomes

Policy 20 - Promotion of sustainable travel

Policy 21 - Tourism and transport

Management and monitoring of the RTP and RTDP

To support the Liwybr Newydd priorities it is essential that the RTP sets out a policy
framework for management of the RTP and monitoring of it and the RTDP. This will
reflect the CJC structure and the role each authority will play in delivering the RTDP.
We also need to provide a process for engaging on transport matters with our
neighbouring regions to support the informal engagement that occur regularly now.
Much detail is still to emerge in conjunction with the Welsh Government about funding
and how this will be distributed but the RTP will need to set out some general
principles. Given the importance of the RTP to the region, monitoring our progress and
how we measure success will be essential in confirming that the RTP policies make a
difference and that the RTDP is delivering on the ground change. Finally, as the RTP
and RTDP have an initial 5-year life, a policy to ensure progress is reviewed and
changes made if circumstances change is recommended. Again, details of the
monitoring and review processes are expected to emerge in conjunction with the
Welsh Government.

The proposed policies:

Policy 22 — Regional Governance

Policy 23 - Cross-border transport planning in the RTP context

Policy 24 — Funding and delivery of the RTDP

Policy 25 — Monitoring the RTP and RTDP and measurement of success

Policy 26 — Reviewing the RTP and RTDP

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

SWW Regional Transport Plan Development Programme 2023-25

Communication and Engagement Schedule (As of 23.8.24)

Timeline Stakeholder Cohort Engagement | Status
Method
Various SWW CJC subcommittee, Written Ongoing
governance scrutiny and full committee: reports. throughout
throughout Available on programme
programme e Implementation Plan — Oct 23 | SWW CJC
e Case for Change — Feb 24 website
e Update — May 24
Delayed due to general
election — July 24
e Policy and General Update —
Sept 24
e Draft RTP — Nov/Dec 24
e Final RTP — Spring 25
Spring 24 All Creation of Completed
regional
transport email
address
May 24 Internal Council SME’s Workshop Completed
July 24 Elected Members Workshop Completed
July 24 Community Councils Workshop Completed
July — August | Public survey on ‘Case for Social media, | Completed
Change’ communications press and
‘Have your
Say’ web
comms
campaign
across region
July 15t — Informal public consultation on Online survey | Completed
August 26 ‘Case for Change’ — 8 weeks and paper

copies at key
council
buildings

Page 27




Sept/Oct 24 Consultation with statutory bodies | 5 week — Sept/Oct 24
on IWBA Statutory
Bodies
September 24 | Regional SME groups: Workshops Ongoing
= Bus Operators and 121 calls
= Train Operators
» Road Haulage Organisations
= Education Providers
= Groups with Protected
Characteristics
= National Parks
= Tourist Organisations
= Active Travel Groups
=  Community and Voluntary
Organisations
» Health & Emergency Services
= Environmental Organisations
» Economic Development
= Celtic Freeport
» Energy Providers
» Elected Members
=  Community Councils
Winter 24/25 Formal Public consultation on Social media, | Winter 24/25
draft RTP, RTDP and IWBA press and
‘Have your
say’ web
comms
campaign
across region
Winter 24/25 Formal statutory consultation on Online survey | Winter 24/25
draft RTP, RTDP and IWBA- 12 and face to
weeks tbc face drop-in
sessions
across region

Please note, the list of cohorts mentioned is not exhaustive, and the region is actively
encouraging everyone to engage in the development of the plan.

Timelines may also be subject to variation as the programme progresses.

Page 28




South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee

(SWWCJC)

Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028 version 002

Integrated Impact Assessment

March 2024 Final



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

L. OVEIVIEW tireeiiiiiienetiisinenenisssssessssssssessssssssesssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssasssssnsasss 5
2. Details Of the INITALIVE..uuiiiiiiiiiiiirrnerreiiiiinssnereressssssssssassessssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssnns 6
2.1 Title Of the INITIATIVE: oo 6
2.2 Brief over of the function/s of the South West Wales Corporate Joint
COMMILLEE (SWWECIC) ..ttt ettt e e st et essaesaeeteesnesseensesnnans 6
2.3 Summary Of the INIIALIVE: ....ccioeeeeeee e 6
2.4 s this a ‘strategic deCiSIiON’?..............ccv i 7
2.5 Who is directly affected by this iNitiative? ... 7
2.6  When and how were people CONSUItEA? .......ocoeiieiieiieieceeeeeeee e 7
2.7 What were the outcomes of the consultation?.........cccocevvevivieneecescereeeene 8
G T Vo L= o T o TR 9
3.1 What evidence was used in assessing the initiative? ........cccceeveveeceveeceennnn, 9
A, EQUALITIES tirieeerceeereiiiiiiiiissnnneeentiinisssssssnnsessssssssssssssnssessssssssssssssnssessssssssssssssnnsssssssss 11
4.1 How does this initiative impact on the people who share a protected
CRATACTEIISTIC? ettt st b ettt e b e b e 11
4.2 What action will be taken to improve or mitigate negative impacts?......14
5. Public Sector EqUAality DULY ..iiciiiceerrrneeeriiiiiniicssnnneeesissssisssssssnssesssssssssssssssnsessssses 15
5.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector
EQUATTEY DULY 2 oottt ettt sttt e s esseeseenaesneeseensesneenseeneas 15
5.2 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? .16
6. SOCIO ECONOMIC DULY wuerriiiiiiiiiiisrsnnnenniiiiisissssssnnnsenssessssssssssnsssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssns 17
6.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?
.................................................................................................................................................. 18
7. Community Cohesion/Social EXCIUSION/POVErtY..ccccevvveereeiiiiiniiisssnnnenenniinssnnnns 19
8. WEISh LANQUAGE cieiiiiieiiieiiiieiiieeeeeeteseeseesessesseesessesessssssssssssssssssssssesssessssassssssssssassanans 21
8.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?
.................................................................................................................................................. 23
9. Biodiversity and the resilience Of ECOSYSIEMS..uiiiiiiiiiiiiirrrnnnneniieiiicccnsneeneeeseens 24
9.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector
2

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 pracg %23(64/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March
2



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

EQUALITY DULY? ettt aee s e ssass e s s ssae s s sesssan e s s ssssans e s sssssnnees 24
9.2 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector
EQUAITTY DULY? ..ttt ettt b e sttt nae b nne s 25

10. Well-being of FUuture GENEerations ....cccccccceeeeeieicccssssnneeeeseessssssssnnessssssssssssssnnnens 26
10.1 How have the five ways of working been applied in the development
OF ThE INITIALIVE? .ottt sttt e et b e 26

11. Monitoring ArrangemeENTS ....eeeeeeiieiiiesissssnneeeieisisssssssssnsasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnsens 29

12.  ASSESSMENT CONCIUSIONS . uiiiiiiiereiiiineesinssneeesssssstessssssssssssssssesssssssssassssssnsanss 30
12.1 Overall ConClUSION = ACHIONS ..oouieiieieeeeeeesee e 34
12.2 Details of the overall conclusion reached in relation to the initiative. ...... 35

IR JR Y o3 1 o 0 36
13.1 What actions are required in relation to obtaining further date/
information, to reduce or remMoVE NEQALIVE.......c.occuevveeiieeeceee e 36
impacts or IMpProve PoSitive IMPACTS? ....ociiirerirereeeeeee e 36

I N o3 1 o ] PR 37

3

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 verfg%og/j? Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

Version Control

) >

Version Author Job Title Reason for Date
Change
001 Karen Jones Chief Executive 07.12.2022
001a Karen Jones Chief Executive Minor editorial January 2023
amendments
ahead of
consultation
002 Karen Jones Chief Executive 30.05.2023
003 Kristy Tillman Head of Policy Review as part of 08.07.2024
and Business 2023 consultation
Administration

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 pra(g %23(?4/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March
2

4



cc abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

1.

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

Overview

This Integrated Impact Assessment (I1A) considers the duties and requirement of the following legislation in order to
inform and ensure effective decision making and compliance:

Equality Act 2010

Welsh Language Standards (N.1) Regulations 2015
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
Environment (Wales) Act 2016

At the meeting of October 11 2022, the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) adopt which is utilised
by Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council.

In order that the SWWCJC can demonstrate that is meeting its public sector duties. The SWWCJC will utilise the IIA
protcocol as a mechanism for considering the impact of proposals at the point of decision. The is already standard
practice within the Constituent Authorities where officers routinely present an assessment of the impact proposals on
duties related to equality; socio-economic characteristics; Welsh language; child poverty; biodiversity and Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 to inform the deliberations of Members.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



v abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

2.1

2.2

2.3

Details of the initiative
Title of the initiative:

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002
Brief over of the function/s of the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 (the LGE Act) created the framework for a consistent

mechanism for regional collaboration between government authorities, namely CJC’s. The LGE Act provides for the
establishment of CJC’s through Regulations (CJC Establishment Regulations).

CJC’s will exercise functions relating to strategic development planning and regional transport planning. They will also
be able to do things to promote the economic well-being of their areas. In contrast to other joint committee

arrangements, CJC’s are separate corporate bodies that can employ staff, hold assets and budgets, and undertake
functions.

Summary of the initiative:

The SWWCJC Corporate Plan 2023 -2028 version 002 seeks to; capture progress to date, setout future ambitions in

the form of a vision and the wellbeing objectives — together with an equality objective. It will also allow for the charting of
the progress made in respect of the public sector duties.

The SWWCJC is adopting a proportionate and integrated approach to meeting its public sector duties through the
production of the Corporate Plan as opposed to a series of separate documents.

6
South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



G¢e abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

2.4

2.5

2.6

Is this a ‘strategic decision’?

Whilst the remit of the SWWCJC is narrow and prescribed to specific functions and equality objective, the Corporate
Plan outlines the strategic commitment and vision of SWWCJC.

The constituent local authorities will be responsible for satisfying duties and legislative requirements, together with
detailed plans and proposals that emerge from SWWCJC in the future (e.g. Regional Transport Plan, Strategic
Development Plan). Such work will be subject to a specific review of the Integrated Impact Assessment (l1A) protocol as
appropriate.

Who is directly affected by this initiative?

Potentially everyone who lives, works and /or visits the South West Wales Region.

In is envisaged that that plans, policies and programmes will be have the greatest impact, such decisions will be subject
to the Integrated Impact Assessment (II1A) protocol as appropriate.

When and how were people consulted?

This lIA has been developed to support the Corporate Plan. It is considered that a full 1A is required as the Corporate
Plan is deemed as a strategic document.

The Corporate Plan was reported to the SWWCJC in December 2023, with Members giving their approval to undertake
a public consultation thereon in early 2024. The consultation provided useful evidence informing further revisions to the
Corporate Plan. Suggested amendments in relation to proposed actions have been included within the draft Corporate
Plan version two.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



9¢ abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

2.7

Discussions have taken place at officer level to include the regions regeneration directors and lead officers. Advice and
guidance has been attained from sector specific professionals, together with recommendations provided by the
Commissioners for Welsh Language, Equalities and Human Rights, together with Welsh Government’s Biodiversity
Policy Officer.

What were the outcomes of the consultation?

The Corporate Plan adopted for 2023-2028 by the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee sets out three well-
being objectives. Whilst there are no changes to the objectives set for the Corporate Joint Committee there is a
requirement to review and where necessary update the actions/steps that the Committee proposes to take in 2024-
2025 in pursuit of those objectives, subject to sufficient resources being available.

Consultation was undertaken between 26th January - 18th February 2024 to gain views on the actions/steps proposed
under each of the three wellbeing objectives. Sixteen responses were received.

The responses were carefully considered with suggested amendments to the proposed actions included within the draft
Corporate Plan version 002.

The draft Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028 version 002 (24-25 Priorities) will be presented together with this
document to the SWWCJC 30" July 2024 for a decision.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



)€ abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

3.

3.1

Evidence

What evidence was used in assessing the initiative?

Statutory guidance has been produced in respect of Corporate Joint Committee’s (CJC’s). There are a range of matters
listed therein that require the SWWCJC to respond to, notably in respect of the public sector duties. Such matters
include: The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (and setting of Well-being objectives), The Welsh
Language Standards, Equalities and Human Rights, Biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems, together with Freedom of
Information and Child Poverty.

At the meeting held on October 2022, the SWWCJC resolved that the most appropriate method of the meeting its public
sector duties in a proportionate and integrated manner would be via the formation of the initial Corporate Plan. This
enables progress to be captured, together with future ambitions towards the vision for South West Wales 2035 and
wellbeing objectives of SWWCJC.

Specific reference to Biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems Section 6 Duty Plan is embedded within the Corporate
Plan.

When formulating the Corporate Plan, the powers and duties that relate to CJC’s, together with statutory guidance
issued have been reviewed align with constitutional aspects of the SWWCJC.

The key evidential facets/ policy components that informed the Corporate Plan are as follows:

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

Constitutional and Governance arrangements of the SWWCJC (since inception)
Future Wales — The National Plan 2040

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

South West Wales Regional Energy Strategy

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



g¢ abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

Liwbr Newydd: The Wales Transport Strategy 2021

The Swansea Bay City Deal

The 2020 Future Generations Report

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — 7 National Goals and 5 Ways of Working
South West Corporate Joint Committee statutory guidance

Welsh Government — Strategic Equality Plan

Is Wales Fairer 2018

The Nature Recovery Action Plan (NRAP) for Wales

South West Wales Area Statement

Wel-Being Report 2022

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

10



6E abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

4. Equalities

4.1 How does this initiative impact on the people who share a protected characteristic?

Protected Characteristic

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

Age

The Regional Economic Delivery Plan (REDP) would
indicate that Wellbeing Objective one of the Corporate
Plan offers particular opportunities around economic
wellbeing, with a view to future job prospects and most
notably with a view to the retention of younger age groups
within the South West Wales region. The review of
economic performance in the region suggests good
progress of recent years, especially in terms of job
creation, however, there is a persistent gap in outcomes
between the region and the rest of the UK. This reflects
the ‘structural’ nature of many of the region’s challenges
linked to the long-term processes of industrial changes
(which in some respects are ongoing) and are shared with
other regions in Wales and the UK. There are a series of
distinctive strengths and opportunities for South West
Wales, especially linked with the region’s energy potential
(particularly green energy and the net zero opportunity)
university-industrial links, strong cultural identity,
environmental assets, and quality of life offer. The REDP
aims to build on these distinctive regional strengths and

11

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



0t obed

Cyd-bwyl

Igor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint

South We¢

Committee for
rst Wales

opportunities to develop a more prosperous and resilient
South West Wales economy.

With reference to older age groups, Well-being objective
two of the Corporate Plan offers particular opportunities
around sustainable transport via the production of the
Regional Transport Plan. The Corporate Plan recognises
the Equality statement set out in Liwybr Newydd which is
to make transport services and infrastructure within the
region accessible and inclusive by aiming to remove the
physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic
and economic barriers that present people from using
sustainable transport.

Disability

Well-being objective two of the Corporate Plan offers
particular opportunities around sustainable transport via
the production of the Regional Transport Plan. The
Corporate Plan recognises the Equality statement set out
in Liwybr Newydd which is to make transport services and
infrastructure within the region accessible and inclusive by
aiming to remove the physical, attitudinal, environmental,
systemic, linguistic and economic barriers that present
people from using sustainable transport.

Further consultation and engagement will be under during
July — August 2024 to inform the draft Regional Transport
Plan and be subject to the IlA process.

Gender Reassignment

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

12

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



T obed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint| Committee for
South West Wales

Marriage and Civil Partnership

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Pregnancy and Maternity

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Race

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Religion or Belief

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Sex

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

13

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



2t obed

De-orllewin Cymru

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
Corporate Joint| Committee for
South West Wales

4.2

+/-
Sexual Orientation

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

What action will be taken to improve or mitigate negative impacts?

It was envisaged that consultation undertaken to the help identify impact of the Corporate Plan and its proposed actions

has upon protected groups.

The SWWCJC is committed to develop and prepare a Participation Strategy, it is envisaged that this will strengthen and
promote positive impacts and eliminating negative impacts as far as is reasonably practicable associated to the

SWWCJC Functions.

The SWWCJC is committed to developing their Participation Strategy in accordance with the Corporate and Strategic
Equality Plans to ensure stakeholders within the South West Wales region are consulted and represented, ensuring

a local distinctive evidence base for decisions.

14

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




oy abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

5. Public Sector Equality Duty

5.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

To eliminate discrimination, harassment and
victimisation

To advance equality of opportunity between
different groups

To foster good relations between different
groups

With regards to the well-being statement set out within
Section 5 of the Corporate Plan, reference is made to the
commentary provided in regards to the well-being goals.

Economic Well-being and Energy (Well-being
Objective 1): Improved economic inclusion and outcomes
should improve cohesion where linked with programmes
and mechanisms that focus on local community
involvement and engagement.

Transport Plan (Well-being Objective 2): A transport
system that contributes to the wider economic ambitions,
that helps local communities, supports a more sustainable
supply chain, uses the latest innovations and addresses
transport affordability.

Strategic Planning (Well-being Objective 3): A region
where people live and work in towns and cities which are a
focus and springboard for sustainable growth and in
vibrant rural places with access to homes, jobs and
services.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

15



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

5.2 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section. The importance of the Regional Transport Plan
reflecting equality of opportunity between those in urban areas and those in rural areas is noted .

vt abed

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

16



Gy abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

6. Socio Economic Duty

Socio Economic Duty

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

With regards to the well-being statement set out within the
Corporate Plan, reference is made to the commentary
provided in regard to the well-being goals.

Economic Well-being and Energy (Well-being
Objective 1): The REDP recognises the need to build an
‘inclusive growth’ model into the strategy, via efforts to
support skills outcomes, resilience to automation, or
mechanisms to support greater wealth retention within the
community, Also, increasing productivity and economic
growth, to support the creation and safeguarding of more,
better paid jobs, opportunities for business starts and
growth, and further links between the knowledge base and
industry.

Transport Plan (Well-being Objective 2): Good for
people and communities — A transport system that
contributes to a more equal Wales and to a healthier
Wales, that everyone has the confidence to use. Good
places for the economy — A transport system that
contributes to the wider economic ambitions and helps
local communities, supports more sustainable supply
chain, uses the latest innovations and address transport
affordability.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

17



o abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporatg Joint Committee for

South West Wales

Strategic Planning (Well-being Objective 3): A region
where people live in distinctive regions that tackle health
and socio- economic inequality through sustainable
growth. A region where people live in places where
prosperity, innovation and culture are promoted — with
world class digital infrastructure.

6.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section. The importance of the Small and Medium

Enterprises is noted.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

18



/v obed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

7. Community Cohesion/Social Exclusion/Poverty

Community Cohesion/Social + Neutral | Why will it have this impact?

Exclusion/Poverty

Community Cohesion + It is anticipated that the three well-being objectives of
the Corporate Plan, individually and combined, will
have a positive impact for individuals and

, . communities alike; increasing social and cultural

Social Exclusion interaction, participation and economic improvement /

+ stability.

Poverty Specific reference is also made to the identification of
an Equality Objective within the Corporate Plan and
the intention to achieve a ‘more equal South West

+ Wales’.

It should also be noted that in reviewing the potential
impact of establishing the CJC’s. the Welsh
Government published impact assessments,
including the Regulatory Impact Assessment and

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

19



gy abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporatg Joint Committee for

South West Wales

7.1

Integrated Impact Assessment. It is considered
therein that aligning strategic planning functions at a
regional level will help underpin / enhance the
economic well-being of a region increasing prosperity
and reducing disadvantage. It is stated that CJC’s
enable planning of key strategic services at a scale
which can underpin the planning delivery of the
specified functions at a national, regional and local
level and support efforts to tackle socio-economic
disadvantage and tackle issues of deprivation.

What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

20



61 abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

8. Welsh Language

Welsh Language

—+

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

What effect does the initiative have on :

e Peoples opportunities to
use the Welsh language

The vision of the Corporate Plan is clear in setting the
corporate direction of travel as shown in this extract
"South West Wales is a place where the Welsh
language is thriving and the region continues to be a
key contributor towards the national target of
achieving a million Welsh speakers by 2050”

A review of the three well-being objectives (Which are
tied to the prescribed functions of the economic well-
being, production of Regional Transport Plan and
Strategic Development Plan) indicate the following
positive interventions:

Economic Well-being and Energy (Well-being
Objective 1): The REDP supports the growth of the
creative economy (also associated with Welsh
language) should directly support, and could be an
important part of the South West Wales investment
proposition. More broadly, there will be an emphasis
on seeking to support the economic vibrancy of the
regio, including principally Welsh speaking
communities.

Transport Plan (Well-being Objective 2): Good for
culture and the Welsh language — A transport system
that supports the Welsh language enables more
people to use sustainable transport to get to arts,

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

21



0G abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporatg Joint Committee for
South West Wales

e Treating the Welsh and
English languages equally

sport and cultural activities, and protects and
enhances the historic environment.

Strategic Planning (Well-being Objective 3): A
region where people live in places with thriving Welsh
language.

It should be noted that in preparing the SDP there will
be policy considerations that include Technical
Advice Note 20 — The Welsh Language

The Corporate Plan contains a specific section
(paragraph 8.2) in this matter.

SWWCJC endorsed the principle of adopting
Carmarthenshire County Council’s standards as the
interim policy position. This enabled the Welsh and
English languages to be equally embedded with the
operational and governance arrangements for the
SWWCJC from the outset.

The Corporate Plan is published bilingually. Notable
within the Corporate Plan is the reference to
budgeting with a dedicated budget for translation.

SWWCJC are currently implemented the standards
as defined within the Welsh Language Standards
Compliance Notice.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

22



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

8.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section. We will continue to monitor and implement the
standards and report as appropriate.

We will continue to liaise with the Welsh Language Commissioner’s office and officers representing our partners, to
implement and promote the standards as set out within the compliance notice.

TG obed

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

23



2G abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

9. Biodiversity and the resilience of ecosystems
9.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?

Biodiversity Duty

+

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

To main and enhance biodiversity

+

The Corporate Plan makes clear reference to The
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. As one of the public
authorities subject to the Biodiversity and Resilience of
Ecosystems Duty, the SWWCJC is required to seek to
maintain and enhance biodiversity so far as is consistent
with the proper exercise of its functions and in doing so
promote the resilience of ecosystems. In this regard, the
SWWCJC takes a proactive approach by embedding a
Plan setting out what it proposes to do to comply with the
Section 6 Duty as outlined with the Corporate Plan. The
Corporate Plan provides commitment for the detailed
areas of policy and strategy that will follow.

To promote the resilience of ecosystems,
i.e. supporting protection of the wider
environment, such as air quality, flood
alleviation etc..

At a high level, it should be noted that the vision of plan is
clear, notably the reference to “The need to enhance the
well-being of future generations and ecosystems is firmly
embedded within decision making structures that are
balanced and inclusive and which recognise the need to
sustainably manage our natural resources and reduce
pollution resulting in place with biodiverse, resilient and
connected ecosystems”.

The approach in the Corporate Plan is on embedding the
consideration of public sector duties into the corporate
governance of the SWWCJC, noting the specific functions
and the fact that the work will be undertaken (e.g.
Strategic Development Plan) that will be subject to
rigorous scrutiny in terms of destinations (including
National Site Network) together with policy alignment e.g.
Technical Advice Note 5 Nature Conservation and
Planning.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

24



G abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

9.2 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?

We will utilise the 1A to review and where relevant seek to identify mitigation in regard to the review potential negative
impacts.

The importance of the historic landscape and built heritage, as well as a sustainable and engaged agricultural sector is
appreciated.

We will continue to monitor and implement the use f the Section 6 Duty Plan and report as appropriate.

There is ongoing dialogue with regional ecologists and Welsh Government biodiversity policy officers.

25
South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



G abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

10.

10.1

) >

Well-being of Future Generations

How have the five ways of working been applied in the development of the initiative?

Ways of Working

Details

Long term — 10yrs (up to 25
years)

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.1 of the plan reference is
made “the recognition of the importance of future generation is implicit within our vision
and well-being objectives, most notably in the fact that the vision (as such the objectives
designed to deliver the vision) are framed within a time bund context i.e’South West
Wales 2035’. Our well-being objectives have also informed our equality objective”.

Prevention — preventing
problems occurring or getting
worse

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.2 of the plan reference is
made “The National well-being goals have played a key role in the identification of the
SWWCJC well-being objectives”. In this regard, Table 1 of the Corporate Plan
undertakes a detailed review whilst recognizing that direct contributions will be made
towards those goals that are most aligned with the powers and duties available to the
SWWCJC.

Collaboration - working with
other services internal or
external

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.3 confirmation that the
Corporate Plan itself was subject to consultation.

26

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




GG abed

De-

Sou

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
rllewin Cymru
Corpofate Joint Committee for
th West Wales

iv. Involvement - involving people,
ensuring they reflect the diversity
of the population

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.4 “Collaboration is at the very
essence of the SWWCJC way f working, from the way it is constituted (i.e. leaders of
the region’s Councils) to the manner which it is seeking to establish co-opted and
advisory framework function”. 1t is to be noted that all three of the well-being objectives
within the Corporate Plan refer to collaboration.

V. Integration — making
connections to maximise
contribution to;

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.5 “ We have put in place a
clear flow and delivery pathway from the issues/policy review, through the vision and
onto the three Well-being objectives themselves. We know where we need to get to and
how we are going to get there. We are confident that the well-being objectives are
specific, measurable, attainable and relevant ( i.e. we have duties and/or powers to
deliver upon them by 2035) because they are legally deliverable and they also stem
from an appreciation of the key issues, challenges and opportunities the we face in
South West Wales”.

Constituent Councils Well-being
objectives

The Corporate Plan contains a well-being statement which contains the following
statement “The preparation of this Corporate Plan has engendered an increased
awareness of the need for us to develop a Participation Strategy. In noting that the
Constituent Councils will have their own strategies and engagement exercise, we do
have an opportunity to develop an approach which is proportionate and does not
duplicate existing provisions with the region”. Also the following “In undertaking our
functions, we are actively embedding the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 (five ways of working) within our corporate governance. Setting our own well-
being objectives, we note the need to have regards to Well-being Plan across the
region. We will seek to work in an integrated and collaborative way and recognize the
significant amount of workk that has been achieved to date by the Councils and Public
Service Bards across the region”.

27

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corpofate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

Other public bodies Objectives The Corporate Plan contains a well-being statement which contains the following
statement “ Whilst setting our own well-being objectives, we need to have regard to the
Well-being Plan already in place across the region as part of a collaborative and
integrated approach”

9G abed

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



)G abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

11.

111

11.2

11.3

Monitoring Arrangements

Information on the monitoring arrangement on the impact of the initiative on Equalities, Community
Cohesion, Welsh Language Measure, The Biodiversity Duty and he Well-being Objectives

Section 9 of the Corporate Plan sets out a performance management commentary. An annual report will be produced.
each year which will consider whether the well-being objectives remain appropriate. Where necessary, the well-being

objectives and improvement priorities will be revised. We will be required to report on progress we made in meeting
our well-being objectives for the preceding financial year.

In preparing the report, we must review the well-being objectives to demonstrate that:
Our well-being objectives are contributing to the achievement of the well-being goals.

We are taking all reasonable steps to meet our well-being objectives.
Our well-being objectives are consistent with the sustainable development principles.

The four subcommittees with established Terms of Reference will have a role in driving forward the delivery of the

three well-being objectives. The Annual Report reviewed at Overview and Scrutiny, together with Governance and
Audit Committees with SWWCJC responsible for approvals.

The Annual Report will be published and communicated as appropriate.

29
South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



gG abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

12.

) >

Assessment Conclusions

Subject

Conclusion

Equalities

Socio Economic Disadvantage

Community Cohesion/ Social
Exclusion/ Poverty

Welsh

Biodiversity

Well-being of Future
Generations

The Corporate Plan adopted for 2023-2028 by the South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee sets out three well-being objectives. Whilst there are no changes to the
objectives set for the Corporate Joint Committee there is a requirement to review and
where necessary update the actions/steps that the Committee proposes to take in
2024-2025 in pursuit of those objectives, subject to sufficient resources being
available.

This IIA has been reviewed in light of the consultation. Further to the consultation
responses received, it is not considered that any change.

The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) hold the views and
interests of the those living, working and visiting the region at the heart of our
decisions.

We endeavour to promote an active and holistic approach to promote sustainable
futures amongst the region and indeed for Wales. Engagement with our stakeholders
is vital, whilst we engage using several methods and approaches, the views of our
communities are especially important to ensure representation.

The proposed steps will be refined in light of consultation responses received and a
final set of proposed actions/steps will be submitted to the SWWCJC for approval as
part of the corporate planning process. The final proposal will include timescales,
resource allocations and the means of monitoring progress.

30

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




6G abed

Cyd-

bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South

West Wales

p

The views and suggestions gained from the consultation will aid and refine the action
plan for each objective, received suggestions for adoption are as follows:

Wellbeing Objective 1 Economic Wellbeing and Energy

. Further consideration will be given to the views and suggestions received from
the consultation.
. The need to ensure balance and proportionality towards achieving Net Zero,

without impacting the economy.
Net Zero targets need to be proportionate to the locality without impacting the
local economy and added impoverishment.

. Promote wider opportunities for funding and business startups
Note. The Regeneration Directors Group are covering this opportunity in
accordance with the Regional Economic Delivery
Plan (REDP

Wellbeing Objective 2 Regional Transport Plan (RTP)

. Further consideration will be given to the views and suggestions received from
the consultation.

Note. Consideration will be given to how RTP integrates and aligns with plans
to develop the strategic ports of Milford Haven and Port Talbot and also
how the RTP integrates and aligns with plan to develop the wider
network of ports and airports in the region.

. Improve the availability of bus services within rural areas

31

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



09 abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South

West Wales

» Improve public engagement to ensure the barriers associated with accessing
public transport can be voiced

Wellbeing Objective 3 Strategic Development Plan (SDP)

. Start the development without final guidance
Note. This would not be appropriate as there is reliance upon the South West
Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) to secure funding from
Welsh Government to initiate the Strategic Development Plan process
in accordance with the guidance.

However, steps are being taken to develop the Replacement Local
Development Plan (RLDP) and the Regional Transport Plan (RTP) in a
way that will start to create the evidence base to support the Strategic
Development Plan (SDP).

. Listen to the electorate
Note. The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) will
undertake consultation and engagement throughout preparation and
development of the Strategic Development Plan, as a mandatory
requirement.

. Accountability for projects
Note. The purpose of the Strategic Development Plan has focus on issues that
cross Local Planning Authority boundaries and will consider how people
in each of the four regions in Wales go about their day to day lives to
include working and commuting patterns to shopping and leisure
activities. The SDP does not cover the delivery of projects.

. Consider the long-term objectives for jobs and businesses, together with

32

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



T9 abed

Cyd-

bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for attracting larger enterprises.
South West Wales Note. These objectives are already included within the Local Development
Plans.
. Ensure engagement and collaboration processes & systems are incorporated

Note. These processes are adopted as statutory requirements of the Local
Development Plan making process.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

33



29 abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

12.1 Overall Conclusion — Actions

Actions

Justification

Continue as planned

All opportunities have been maximised with no significant concerns

Continue to monitor progress, challenges and opportunities.
Reporting to continue via the Subcommittees, together with
SWWCJC Programme Board and Steering Group.

Continue - Make Adjustments subject to an approved
Improvement Plan

Potential problems/missed opportunities/negative impacts have been
identified.

Improvement Plan approved and implemented.

Suspend — Review, develop and implement an
improvement plan

Significant shortfalls or noncompliance suspected / identified.

Consider suspending existing activity subject to adopting a risk
based approach.

Suspend new decisions/ activity until such time the that the
SWWCJC endorses Improvement Plan.

Develop and approve Improvement Plan.

Redraft the initiative and introduce an interim monitoring regime.

34

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

12.2 Details of the overall conclusion reached in relation to the initiative.

There are no concerns in respect of this IIA informed by the Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 and findings of the
consultation of the proposed actions for 24/25.

The recommended action is to continue as planned.

g abed

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

35



79 abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

13. Actions

13.1 What actions are required in relation to obtaining further date/ information, to reduce or remove negative
impacts or improve positive impacts?

Action/s

Who will be responsible for
ensuring the action?

When will the action be
done?

How will we know the
action has been
successful?

Continue to monitor
progress, whilst

Reginal Directors reporting to the
Sub Committees and SWWCJC

Ongoing — Minimum
frequency as per cycle of

Chair person together with
CEO will monitor

Strategy

Administration and SWWCJC
CEO

mitigating challenges | Programme Board and Steering meetings 2024/25
and maximising Group
opportunity
Develop the Strategic | Head of Policy and Business Draft July 2024 Endorsement of SWWCJC
Equality Plan Administration and SWWCJC Final Draft September 204 September 2024
CEO
Develop Participation | Head of Policy and Business Draft October 2024 Endorsement of SWWCJC

Final Draft December 2024

December 2024

Consultation

Regional Directors with prior
approval to consult for SWWCJC

Ongoing — Prior to
significant decision making

Integrated Impact
Assessment (IIA) process
outlined within all reports
to SWWCJC

Integrated Impact
Assessment (lIA)

All officers and members
preparing reports

Ongoing — Prior to
significant decision making

Integrated Impact
Assessment (IIA) process
outlined within all reports
to SWWCJC

36

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



G9 abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

14. Actions

Name

Position

Signature

Date

Completed by

Kristy Tillman on
behalf of Will Bramble
CEO for SWWCJC

Head of Policy and
Business
Administration

K Tillman

08.07.2024

Endorsed and
approved

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




This page is intentionally left blank



Cyd-bwyligor Corfforedig Ag e n d a I te m 5
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for ))))
South West Wales

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE
12" September 2024

Report of the Chief Executive

Report Title: Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Regional
Strategic Equality Plan

Purpose of Report For Information

To provide Members of the South West
Wales  Corporate  Joint  Committee
(SWWCJC) with an update on the
development of the Joint Equality, Diversity
and Inclusion Strategy that will inform the
Regional Strategic Equality Plan (SEP).

Recommendation(s) That Members of the South West Wales
Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)
approve the Joint Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion Strategy (Appendix A) for
approval, to enable implementation of the
action plan and development of the
Regional Strategic Equality Plan (SEP).

Note. The Overview and Scrutiny Sub
Committee 3" September 2024 endorsed
the recommendation(s)

Report Author Will Bramble and Kristy Tillman
Finance Officer Chris Moore
Legal Officer Craig Giriffiths

1. Introduction / Background:

1.1 Further to correspondence received from the Equality and Human Rights
Commission (EHRC), the Chief Executive has met Rev Ruth Coombs Head of Wales
on behalf of the Commission.

1.2 The Corporate Plan encompasses the commitment towards the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED), together with the Equality Objective “To deliver a more equal
South West Wales by 2035 by contributing towards:

m Bannau
W Brycheiniog

5 sk | k( “n (sjyr:gm Abértaw_le Cyngor Sir 655 n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
NS4 AN wansea Louncll - carmarthenshire otk Port Talbot Counil
19072 :/_ County Counci % 67 t [aibot Council




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

(a) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aim of eliminating
inequality caused by poverty;

(b)The achievement of the Equality statement set out in Liwybr Newydd which is to
make our transport services and infrastructure accessible and inclusive by aiming
to remove the physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic and
economic barriers that prevent people from using sustainable transport,

And

(c) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aims of
cohesive communities that are resilient, fair and equal and where everyone is
able to participate in political, public and everyday life. There will be no room for
racism and / or discrimination of any kind.”,

1.3 Whilst the Commission appreciated the commitment of SWWCJC’s Corporate plan,

they noted the SWWCJC were yet to publish their Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) in
accordance with The Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011
Regulation 14. Strategic Equality Plan and Reg 7. Arrangements for collection etc. of
information about compliance with the general duty

1.4 During the meeting held on 16™ May 2024, the Chief Executive provided an overview

2.

of the progress made SWWCJC has made and recognised within the findings
published by Audit Wales. The Chief Executive further advised that the partners of
SWWCJC had robust policies and procedures in place to include Strategic Equality
Plans, together with the integrated impact assessment toolkit adopted by the
SWWCJC to form strategic decisions.

Equality and Human Rights Commissioner:

2.1 Rev Ruth Coombs was positive that the SWWCJC are working towards the planned

approach in a timely manner. Further advice and guidance was offered via officers
together with publications available on the Equality and Human Rights Commission
website https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/guidance/public-sector-equality-
duty/public-sector-equality-duty-specific-duties-wales.

Pz d| k«. Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir 555 Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot
2 3 A\ Swansea Council Carmarthenshire i o 2 "
4 . \S'? a

:/_ County Counci W8 Port Talbot Coundil

; m Bannau

W Brycheiniog 2
N\
UL Vi



https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/public-sector-equality-duty-specific-duties-wales
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/public-sector-equality-duty-specific-duties-wales

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

3. Development:

3.1 The Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy has been developed to outline
the commitment of the SWWCJC towards equality, diversity and inclusion. The
strategy outlines several objectives and actions that will inform and enable the
Regional Strategic Equality Plan.

3.2 Officers will continue to liaise with the Commission to gain feedback of the approach
to implement the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and to inform the
Regional Strategic Equality Plan in collaboration with partners to the SWWCJC.

3.3 The Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Regional Strategic Equality
Plan will be presented to the SWWCJC to seek approval.

4. Timescales:

4.1 Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy (Update) (Information) be presented
to SWWCJC 30" July 2024

4.2 Liaise with the Equality and Human Rights Commission on draft strategy by 30" July
2024

4.3 Present the Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy to the Overview and
Scrutiny Sub Committee (3" September 2024) for comment and endorsement.

4.4 Present the Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy to the South West Wales
Corporate Joint Committee (12" September 2024) seeking endorsement to
implement and publish, enabling the development of the Regional Strategic Equality
Plan.

5. Financial Impacts:

5.1 Engagement and participation development may require consultancy to ensure media
planforms, stakeholder engagement planning and events. This will be considered in
future reports if deemed necessary.

6. Integrated Impact Assessment:

6.1 The CJC is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-
economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have
due regard to the need to:

Poica o (‘-» (SZergor Abértaw_le Cyngor Sir Gar i u Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot
¢ R\ wansea Councll ¢, neo thenshire Neath Port Talbot Counc
2 :/— County Counci % 69 t Talbot Coundil

; m Bannau
W Brycheiniog 3
UL Vi




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Acts.

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

e Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-
economic disadvantage.

e Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language.

e Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

e Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

In recognition of the above duties, the CJC has adopted an Integrated Impact
Assessment (IIA) Tool which allows for a two-stage approach to be undertaken to
measure any potential impact of its decisions.

Following the consultation undertaken during January 2024 on the proposed
actions to deliver the well-being objectives, the findings were incorporated
within an Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) (Appendix B) and the Corporate
Plan updated and approved as version 002. Whilst the actions were subject to
Amendment, the well-being objectives remain unchanged. The Corporate Plan
and the associated IlA is interfaced with the Joint Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion Strategy.

The Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy will inform the Regional

Strategic Equality Plan (SEP). The existing integrated impact assessment (l1A)
accompanying the Corporate Plan is considered suitable and sufficient to enable
the implementation of the proposed actions in accordance with published
guidance. This will enable the development of the Regional Strategic Equality
Plan, engagement undertaken by partners of the SWWCJC will also be utilised.

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan
includes the CJC’s Equality Objective which is set out below for ease of reference:
“To deliver a more equal South West Wales by 2035 by contributing towards:

(@) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aim of
eliminating inequality caused by poverty;

(b) The achievement of the Equality statement set out in Liwybr Newydd which is
to make our transport services and infrastructure accessible and inclusive by
aiming to remove the physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic
and economic barriers that prevent people from using sustainable transport,

!ﬁv‘"z!‘ k«» Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir Géa u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot : m Bannau
: E W Swansea Council  ¢4rmarthenshire L% ; W Brycheiniog 4
) Oy ‘cl"a / a 5\

County Counci w Aeath Port Talbot Coundil



https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales
And

(c) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aims of
cohesive communities that are resilient, fair and equal and where everyone is
able to participate in political, public and everyday life. There will be no room
for racism and / or discrimination of any kind.”

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Alignment with CJC Corporate Plan 2023-2028 and the identified CJC Well-being

objectives:

6.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies
in Wales must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means
the process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being
of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle,
aimed at achieving the ‘well-being goals’.

6.3 The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan
contains the CJC’s well-being objectives and frames the corporate direction of travel.
To this end, it is considered that the recommendation(s) contained within this report
align(s) to the corporate policy framework of the CJC as set out within its Corporate
Plan.

Well-being Objective 1

“To collaboratively deliver the Regional Economic Delivery Plan and Regional Energy
Strategy thereby improving the decarbonised economic well-being of South West
Wales for our future generations.”

Well-Being Objective 2

“To produce a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales that is founded on
collaboration and enables the delivery of a transport system which is good for our
current and future generations of people and communities, good for our environment
and good for our economy and places (rural and urban).”

Well-Being Objective 3

“To produce a sound, deliverable, co-ordinated and locally distinctive Strategic
Development Plan for South West Wales which is founded on stakeholder
engagement and collaboration and which clearly sets out the scale and location of
future growth for our future generations.”

e (. cs:yngor Abértaw_le Cyngor Sir Gar i n Cymgor Castelbnedid Pot Tabat
¢ R\ wansea Councll ¢, neo thenshire Naath Port Talbot Counc
2 :/— County Counci % 71 t Talbot Coundil

; m Bannau
W Brycheiniog 5
UL Vi



https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

The Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) (Appendix B) associated with the
Corporate Plan has been utilised to inform the Joint Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion Strategy.

As part of the development of the Regional Strategic Equality Plan, the
Integrated Impact assessment will be reviewed to incorporate the IIA applicable
to each constituent authority in relation to their Strategic Equality Plan.

7. Workforce Impacts:
7.1 There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.
8. Legal Impacts:

8.1 To meet the duty placed on the Corporate Joint Committee for South West
Wales (SWWCJC).

9. Risk Management Impacts:

9.1 To meet the legislative requirements of the South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee, whilst discharging the duties

10. Consultation:
10.1 The development of this report and associated appendices have been informed by

the consultation undertaken to review the Corporate Plan, together with published
guidance obtained from https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/quidance/

As part of the development of the Regional Strategic Equality Plan, the Integrated
Impact assessment will be reviewed to incorporate the IlA applicable to each
constituent authority in relation to their Strategic Equality Plan (SEP).

11. Reasons for Proposed Decision:

11.1 To meet the duty placed on the Corporate Joint Committee for South West Wales
(SWWCJC).

11.2 That Members of the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)
endorse the Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy (Appendix A) for
approval, to enable the implementation of the action plan and development of the
Regional Strategic Equality Plan (SEP).

Pz d| k«. Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir 555 Cyngor Castelknedd Port Talbot
2 3 A\ Swansea Council Carmarthenshire i o 2 "
4 . \S'? a

:/_ County Counci wz Port Talbot Coundil

; m Bannau

W Brycheiniog 6
N\
UL Vi



https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/guidance/

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

12. Implementation of Decision:
12.1 Following the three-day call-in period.
13. Appendices:

13.1 Appendix A — Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy
13.2 Appendix B — Corporate Plan version 002 — Integrated Impact Assessment (11A)

14. List of Background Papers:

14.1 South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Tuesday, 30th July, 2024 2.00
pm

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Tuesday, 30th July, 2024 2.00 pm

14.2 South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Overview and Scrutiny Sub-
Committee - Tuesday, 3rd September 2024 2.00 pm

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee - Overview and Scrutiny Sub-
Committee - Tuesday, 3rd September, 2024 2.00 pm

L G cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir Gaﬁ n Cyngor Castehnedd Port Talbot. MY Bannau
: i Swansea Council ¢,rmarthenshire S Port Tabbot Councl W Brycheiniog 7
Q0 / County Council % 73 O \



https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=491
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=499
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=499

This page is intentionally left blank



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

Appendix A

South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee (SWWCJC)

Joint Equality, Diversity, and
Inclusion Strategy
2024 — 2028 (Draft)

SV ¢ gag:;::g?:::; Cyngor Sir Gas n Cyngor Castelknedd Port Tabot [N %al){}il}! ‘
N e CSBT:S'&.’O"U?J" ‘}/, Neath Port Talbot Coundil j W brycneiniog
3 Js CLY




Contents

(7o) 0] =] 0] £SO TPPTRPPPUPRRPIN
2| South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) —

(@ LU G Lo 10| o 1= Y UPTPRPPRN
3| CollabOration .....cocooiiiiie e
4]  StrategiC ODJECLIVES ....ccueiiiiii e
5] Our CommItMENT ...coovuniiiic e 7
6| Engagement and Consultation...........cccooooviiiiiiiiieiiie e, 8
7] Monitoring and RePOItiNG ...ccevuieiiiiie e 9
8| SWWCJIC Regional Action Plan (Equality, Diversity and
Yo 1 1= 0] ) P 9

Appendix 1 SWWCJC Regional Action Plan (Equality, Diversity and
INCIUSTON) e e e 11

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Jnclusion egy 2024-2028 Draft
age



1] Overview

The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) is a listed public
body in Wales, contained in Part 2 of Schedule 19 of the Act as supplemented and
amended by the Equality Act 2010 (Specification of Relevant Welsh Authorities)
Order 2011.

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) brought together and replaced the previous anti-
discrimination laws with a single Act. The majority of the Act came into force on 1
October 2010.

The Act includes a public sector equality duty (the ‘general duty’), replacing the
separate duties on race, disability and gender equality. This came into force on 5
April 2011.

General duty

To ensure that public authorities and those carrying out a public function consider
how they can positively contribute to a fairer society through advancing equality and
good relations in their day-to-day activities.

The duty ensures that equality considerations are built into the design of policies and
the delivery of services and that they are kept under review. This will achieve better
outcomes for all. Public bodies are required to have due regard to the need to:

1. eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct that is prohibited by the Act

2. advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not

3. foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

The general duty covers the following protected characteristics:
age

disability

gender reassignment

pregnancy and maternity

race

religion or belief

sex

sexual orientation

marriage and civil partnership

The phrase ‘protected group’ is sometimes used to refer to people who share a
protected characteristic.

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inc‘fl)sion Stra,?%v 2024-2028 Draft
age



Specific duties in Wales

Specific duties in Wales support listed bodies in their performance of the general
duty.

The specific duties set out the steps that listed bodies in Wales must take in order to
demonstrate that they are meeting the general duty.

The duties inter-relate and more details on each aspect can be found in the following
guidance:
1. The Essential Guide to the Public Sector Equality Duty (An Overview)
Equality Objectives and Strategic Equality Plans
Engagement and the Equality Duty
Assessing Impact and the Equality Duty
Equality Information and the Equality Duty
Employment Information, Pay Differences and Staff Training and the Equality
Duty
Procurement and the Equality Duty
8. Annual Reporting, Publishing and Ministerial Duties and the Equality Duty

L

™~

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Jnclusion syétegy 2024-2028 Draft
age



2| South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) —
Our Journey

The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) has been enabled by
the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.

The SWWCJC was formally constituted in January 2022 and covers the local
authority areas of: Carmarthenshire, Neath Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and
Swansea.

The purpose of the SWWCJC is to improve the regional planning, co-ordination and
delivery of transport, land use planning, economic development and energy in
collaboration with partner organisations and our communities.

The Committee is made up of representation from Carmarthenshire County Council,
Neath Port Talbot Council, Pembrokeshire County Council and Swansea Council,
together with Bannau Brycheiniog and the Pembrokeshire Coast National Park
Authorities.

The six organisations have come together to development and implement a joint
strategy focusing on equality, diversity, and inclusion. Individually, the six
organisations have identified objectives to promote equality and inclusion as part of
their service delivery commitment. The objectives have been informed by the views
and feedback of gained from the local communities, through ongoing participation to
included established focus groups and consultation.

The SWWCJC will underpin the commitment/s of shared by partners to promote
equality and inclusion as part of regional approach for service delivery. The
SWWCJC will further promote the commitment to continue to seek opportunities for
inclusion and diversity within South West Wales Region working in partnership with
their stakeholders to inform strategic decisions.

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inc‘fl)sion Stra,?@/ 2024-2028 Draft
age



3| Collaboration

The collaborative approach of the SWWCJC will build upon the objectives derived by
each partner organisation, whilst seeking further opportunities to ensure a coherent
regional approach to benefit our people living, working and visiting South West
Wales.

The shared vision of a Corporate Joint Committee is to promote a more cohesive
and consistent mechanism of collaboration across Wales.

Strategic decisions are underpinned by the integrated impact assessment process.

The SWWCJC recognises the delivery of the Welsh Government’s Strategic Equality
Plan and Equality Objectives 2024-2028 under the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011, and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED).

The joint strategy will complement Welsh Government’s equality plans, and aims to
align and make connections between existing plans (such as the Anti-Racist Wales
Action Plan (https://www.gov.wales/antiracist-wales-action-plan) and LGBTQ+ Action
Plan for Wales (https://www.gov.wales/Igbtg-action-plan-wales ).

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Jnclusion Sér@tegy 2024-2028 Draft
age



4| Strategic Objectives

The SWWCJC Equality Objective is already embedded within our Corporate Plan
2023 -2028 as summarised below.

To deliver a more equal South West Wales by 2035 by contributing towards:

(a) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aim of
eliminating inequality caused by poverty (Strategic Equality Plan 2020 - 2024);

(b) The achievement of the Equality statement set out in Liwybr Newydd (LIwybr
Newydd: the Wales transport strategy 2021) which is to make our transport
services and infrastructure accessible and inclusive by aiming to remove the
physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic and economic barriers
that prevent people from using sustainable transport,

and

(c) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aims of
cohesive communities that are resilient, fair and equal and where everyone is
able to participate in political, public and everyday life. There will be no room
for racism and / or discrimination of any kind.”

5| Our Commitment

The SWWCJC is committed to;

e Strengthen the focus on equality, diversity and inclusion, whereby strategic
decisions will be subject to the adopted integrated impact assessment
process.

e Explore and further develop the engagement and participation strategies
active within each constituent authority, to ensure strong voice and influence.

e Explore and further develop our network to ensure the experiences of people
who share one or more of the protected characteristics to inform our decision
making.

e Through regular training and engagement ensure that representatives and

partners will be equipped to challenge the Functions of the SWWCJC to
promote an equal, diverse and inclusive vision for South West Wales

e Strategic decisions are subject to the integrated impact assessment process,
to challenge risk of inequality as part of the strategic decisions.

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inc‘gsion Stra ET 2024-2028 Draft
age


https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024

Currently, staff are employed under the constituent local authorities. The
SWWCJC will support their representatives, partners and political members to
flourish and thrive within an equal, fair and inclusive environment.

SWWCJC will invest to develop and create learning cultures to allow the
impact of equality, diversity, and inclusion to be monitored and challenged,
promoting continuous improvement.

This strategy will strive to reduce inequalities within South West Wales,
associated with the Functions of the SWWCJC.

Our strategic objectives are priorities, and aim to help to deliver equality for our
stakeholders to include but not limited to:

6|

Communities within South West Wales
Visitors to South West Wales

Our workforce

Our partners

Businesses and Local Economy

Engagement and Consultation

The SWWCJC will underpin and adopt the commitment/s of their partners, to
promote equality, diversity and inclusion as part of the regional service delivery.

The SWWCJC will further promote the commitment for further opportunities for
equality, diversity and inclusion within South West Wales Region working in
partnership with their stakeholders to inform strategic decisions through participation.

The SWWCJC is committed to;

Explore and further develop the engagement and participation systems active
within each constituent authority, to ensure strong voice and influence.
Consult ahead of strategic decisions by incorporating available data from
partners and where necessary further consult.

Review previous studies and incorporate the findings to inform future
engagement and consultations events.

Review and seek continuous improvement by monitoring the feedback and
approach adopted to engage and consult.

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Jnclusion Sérﬁtegy 2024-2028 Draft
age



Fundamentals of Engagement and Consultation

To provide feedback to the views and suggestions received
To advise on actions following the feedback received

To provide reasoning

Encourage ongoing engagement through dedicated groups

7| Monitoring and Reporting

We will monitor the impact of engagement, consultation in relation to the Functions
of the SWWCJC that will inform strategic decisions, through the integrated impact
process.

To monitor the objective/s, the progress of the action/s within this strategy will be
shared within the annual report presented to the SWWCJC for endorsement and be
published on http://www.cjcsouthwest.wales/ either as a standalone report or be
incorporated the annual report of the Corporate Plan (Well-being Objectives).

8| SWWCJIC Regional Action Plan (Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion)

The SWWCJC ethos is to actively promote a collaborative approach amongst their
stakeholders. Our partners, have already forged relationships and defined networks
that have informed their strategies for promoting equality, diversity and inclusion.

The SWWCJC will explore opportunities to further expand engagement (as deemed
necessary) to ensure they identify and reach out to unrepresented groups within
South West Wales who may be impacted by the strategic decision making for the
Functions of the SWWCJC.

In the development of this joint strategy, the SWWCJC has utilised commitment of
each partner as outlined within their own bespoke Strategic Equality Plans.

The SWWCJC will explore the strengths and weaknesses of the established
methods for promoting equality, diversity and inclusion by partners, to collectively
work to reflect and inform the development of strategic priorities forming the
SWWCJC Strategic Equality Plan.

Appendix 1 SWWCJC Regional Action Plan (Equality, Diversity and Inclusion)
outlines the SWWCJC commitment/s to develop and implement the SWWCJC
Strategic Equality Plan.

Whilst Objective 1 is already included within the SWWCJC Corporate Plan

(SWWCJC Equality Objective), the SWWCJC will include additional Objectives as
and review and incorporate within the SWWCJC priorities for 2025/2026.

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inc‘gsion Straéegy 2024-2028 Draft
age


http://www.cjcsouthwest.wales/

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strajegy 2024-2028 Draft
age =il

10



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

Appendix 1 SWWCJC Regional Action Plan (Equality, Diversity and Inclusion) — August 2024

co B 1

County Counci

,‘ K(/» Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir 653 n
i: N\ P Swansea Councl ¢ormarthenshire
/4 "_/_

Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

’(W Neath Port Talbot Coundil

Strategic Equality Objective Target Action Monitoring Review Action Officer Status
(In Progress/Closed/
Delayed)
Strategic Equality Objective 1. (a) The achievement of the | To support the To be reflected within November 2024 | Director of
Welsh Government’s aims and objectives | draft plans accompanied Place Swansea
To deliver a more equal South West Wales by 2035 by long-term equality aim of | so far as is by the integrated impact Council
contributing towards: eliminating inequality reasonably assessment (l1A) as
caused by poverty practicable. adopted by the
(Strategic Equality Plan SWWCJC.
2020 - 2024);
November 2024 | Director of

(b) The achievement of the | The vision and To be reflected within Place Swansea
Equality statement set priorities inform the | draft plans accompanied Council
out in Liwybr Newydd Regional Transport | by the integrated impact
(LIwybr Newydd: the Plan aims and assessment (I1A) as
Wales transport strategy | objectives adopted by the
2021) which is to make | embedded within SWWCJC.
our transport services the Case for
and infrastructure Change.
accessible and inclusive
by aiming to remove the
physical, attitudinal,
environmental, systemic,
linguistic and economic
barriers that prevent
people from using
sustainable transport,

(c) The achievement of the | Embed the Working in conjunction November 2024 | Head of Policy
Welsh Government'’s following eight aims | with All Wales — and Business
long-term equality aims | within the functions | Corporate Joint Administration
of cohesive communities | of the SWWCJC so | Committee’s (CJC’s),
that are resilient, fair and | far is reasonably Welsh Government
equal and where practicable. (WG), Welsh Local
everyone is able to Government Association
participate in political, 1. Stop inequality (WLGA), Audit Wales
public and everyday life. caused by and Commissioners to
There will be no room for poverty instil good practice.
racism and / or 2. Human rights are
discrimination of any protected in
kind.” Wales

N Bannau

W Brycheiniog



https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024

3. Public services

think more about
the needs and
rights of different
people

4. Wales is a place

where people are
treated equally
whatever gender
they are

5. Stop people from

being treated
badly and unfairly

6. Stronger and

fairer
communities

7. Everyone in

Wales has the
chance to get
involved

8. Public bodies set

a good example
for employing

Develop and Implement the SWWCJC Strategic Equality
Plan (SEP) in accordance with SMART (specific,
measurable, achievable, relevant and timebound) principles.

The SEP will outline the equality objective in relation to each
of the protected characteristics or outline and publish its
reasons for not doing so. The following will be considered
for each objective

equality objectives at
least every four years
from the first date of
publication.

and adopted by
the SWWCJC
details will be
available on the
SWWCJC
webpage and
cascaded to
interested
persons

subject to approval with
allowance to arrange
bilingual formats.

o people from
ég different
backgrounds.
EgStrategic Equality Objective 2. e Prepare and publishits | ¢ Once approved To be made available November 2024 | Head of Policy

and Business
Administration

e Have all three aims of the general duty been o
considered (that is, to eliminate
discrimination/harassment, advance equality and
foster good relations) in relation to each
characteristic?

e Isthere a focus on the key issues affecting the
different characteristics and the steps that can most
effectively address any disadvantage?

Note. Guidance to be adopted

Publish objectives to
meet the general duty.
Note. If an authority
does not have an
objective for each
protected characteristic
— in addition to any
objective to address pay
differences — it must
publish reasons why not

¢ Once approved
and adopted by
the SWWCJC
details will be
available on the
SWWCJC
webpage and
cascaded to
interested
persons

To be made available
subject to approval with
allowance to ensure
accessibility and
bilingual formats.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft

12




Equality Objectives and Strategic Equality Plans o

A Guide for Listed Public Authorities
in Wales

equality objectives and strategic equality plans wales.pdf
(equalityhumanrights.com)

Publish a statement
setting out the steps the
SWWCJC has taken (or
intends to take to meet
the objectives) and how
long it expects to take to
meet each objective

e Prepare a
statement for
publishing once
SWWCJC has
approved and
adopted the Joint
Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion
Strategy and
Regional
Strategic Equality
Plan

To be made available
subject to approval with
allowance to ensure
accessibility and
bilingual formats.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

Make appropriate

e Develop and

Develop a tracker and

November 2024

Head of Policy

10 "B 1

consideration to relevant
equality information the
SWWCJC holds when
considering what its
equality objectives
should be.

objectives as part
of the six-monthly
workshops
scheduled.

identify and record new
priorities together with
any foreseeable impact
to the current
commitments for
Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion associated to
the SWWCJC

arrangements to monitor implement a designate responsible and Business
progress towards monitoring officers Administration
meeting its objectives regime
and to monitor the
effectiveness of its
approach

e Give appropriate e Review Utilise the tracker and November 2024 | Members of the

SWWCJC
Programme
Board and
Steering Group

Objectives on pay
difference

have due regard to the
need to have objectives
to address the causes of
any pay differences that
seem reasonably likely
to be related to any of
the protected
characteristics

publish an equality
objective to address any
gender pay gap
identified or else publish
reasons why it has not
done so

e Constituent Local
Authorities and
National Park
Authorities will
monitor as part of
the organisational
T&Cs in relation
to employment.

Constituent Local
Authorities and National
Park Authorities will
monitor as part of the
organisational T&Cs in
relation to employment.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft

13



https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/equality_objectives_and_strategic_equality_plans_wales.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/equality_objectives_and_strategic_equality_plans_wales.pdf

Note. Even where an
authority publishes an
equality objective to
address pay differences
in relation to any
protected characteristic,
it must still have due
regard to the need to
have other equality
objectives in relation to
that protected
characteristic. If it
publishes no other such
objective, it will need to
explain why not.

oo "B 1

The SWWCJC will e Amalgamate the | To be reflected within November 2024 | Head of Policy
underpin their partner’s current draft plans accompanied and Business
commitment/s to commitments to | by the integrated impact Administration
promote equality and inform the assessment (I1A) as
inclusion as included overarching joint | adopted by the
within their SEP to commitment for | SWWCJC.
inform the SWWCJC Equality,
Regional Strategic Diversity and To be reflected within
Equality Plan (SEP). Inclusion for consultation and
South West engagement
Wales programmes.
Identify active
networks to
consider further
opportunities
Assess the
effectiveness of
current
engagement
The SWWCJC will Identify active Review formed networks | November 2024 | Head of Policy

further seek
opportunities for
inclusion and diversity
within South West Wales
Region working in
partnership with their
stakeholders to inform
strategic decisions.

networks to
consider further
opportunities

to determine their
interaction for decision
making.

and Business
Administration

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft




Explore and further
develop the engagement
and participation
systems active within
each constituent
authority, to ensure
strong voice and
influence.

e Identify active

networks to
consider further
opportunities

e Assess the

effectiveness of
current
engagement

Review formed networks
to determine their
interaction for decision
making.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

Explore and further
develop our network to
ensure the experiences
of people who share one
or more of the protected
characteristics to inform
our decision making.

Identify active
networks to
consider further
opportunities

e Assess the

effectiveness of
current
engagement

Review formed networks
to determine their
interaction for decision
making.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

co "B 1

Strengthen the focus on
equality, diversity and

e Provide further

awareness and

To be reflected within
draft plans accompanied

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business

inclusion whereby training as by the integrated impact Administration
strategic decisions will deemed assessment (11A) as
be subject to the necessary adopted by the
integrated impact SWWCJC.
assessment process
adopted. To be reflected within

consultation and

engagement

programmes.
Through regular training Develop a Ensure training and November 2024 | Head of Policy
and engagement ensure training and awareness initiatives are and Business
that representatives and awareness credible. Administration
partners will be programme
equipped to challenge building upon Reviewed on regular
the Functions of the existing basis to ensure the detalil
SWWCJC to promote an programmes IS current.
equal, diverse and adopted by
inclusive vision for South partners. Promotion of training
West Wales and awareness
Currently, staff are Develop a Ensure training and November 2024 | Head of Policy
employed under the training and awareness initiatives are and Business
constituent local awareness credible, not to Administration
authorities. The programme undermine existing
SWWCJC will support building upon strategies.
their representatives, existing
partners and political programmes

members to flourish and

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft




thrive within an equal,

adopted by

Add an item to
cover Equality,
Diversity and

covered at SWWCJC
Programme Board and
Steering Group

fair and inclusive partners.
environment and not be
unfairly disadvantaged.

e SWWCJC will invest to Develop a Ensure training and November 2024 | Head of Policy
develop and create training and awareness initiatives are and Business
learning cultures to allow awareness credible. Administration
the impact of equality, programme
diversity, and inclusion building upon Reviewed on regular
to be monitored and existing basis to ensure the detail
challenged, promoting strategies and | is current.
continuous improvement initiatives

adopted by Promotion of training
partners. and awareness
jY)
éS’Strategic Equality Objective 3. e Develop and cascade Identify and Participation Strategy November 2024 | Head of Policy
[¢) advice and guidance review and Business
@integrate Equality, Diversity and Inclusion within the stakeholder Administration
Prunctions of the SWWCJC together with mechanisms for groups to
Continuous Improvement ensure
engagement
e Training and awareness Develop and Ensure training and November 2024 | Head of Policy
cascade awareness initiatives are and Business
suitable and credible. Administration
sufficient
initiatives Reviewed on regular
basis to ensure the detail
IS current.
Promotion of training
and awareness.

e Mechanisms to Setup a Implement a mechanism | November 2024 | Head of Policy
challenge and address protocol for for suggestions and and Business
inequality persons to improvements to be Administration

raise reported.
suggestions or
concerns Agenda item to be

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft

16




Inclusion to the
agenda of the
Programme
Board and
Steering Group
in lieu of
separate
Working Group

Processes for Monitoring

Review

As the SWWCJC

November 2024

Head of Policy

viable improvements
Undertake audits for
accessibility

and Review trackers matures Key and Business
Agenda Item at | Performance Indicators Administration
SWWCJC (KPI’s) will be applicable
Programme
Board and
Steering Group
Integrated
Impact
Assessment
Protocol
Strategic Equality Objective 4. e Continue to use the Map and Participation Strategy November 2024 | Head of Policy
knowledge and identify existing and Business
Strengthen the Participation, Engagement and Consultation experience of the stakeholder Administration
—with Stakeholders applicable to SWWCJC Functions within established stakeholder groups.
the South West Wales Region advisory groups to
C(% inform and influence the Identify any
1S work streams. gaps in
= e To strengthen links with representation.
key stakeholders and
seek to obtain new or
additional feedback from
them about their
experiences,
suggestions and
challenges.

e Review current methods Identify and Participation Strategy November 2024 | Head of Policy
of engagement and review and Business
evaluate the accessibility stakeholder Administration
and effectiveness of the groups to
current approach. ensure

e Propose and suggest engagement

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft

17




—Zr A"Ap 1

Strategic Equality Objective 5.

SWWCJC Values
(Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion)

Develop training and
awareness packages for
SWwcCJC
representatives and
members

e Suitable and
sufficient
information and
awareness

Ensure training and
awareness initiatives are
credible.

Reviewed on regular
basis to ensure the detail
is current.

Promotion of training
and awareness.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

Promote and Champion
equality, diversity and
inclusion

e Lead Officers
Champions

e Training and
awareness

Implement a mechanism
for suggestions and
improvements to be
reported.

Agenda item to be
covered at SWWCJC
Programme Board and
Steering Group

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

Review and Monitor
protocols to ensure
partner and Welsh
Government
commitments are
aligned.

Develop mechanisms to
capture and share good
practice as part of
continuous improvement

Working in conjunction
with All Wales —
Corporate Joint
Committee’s (CJC’s),
Welsh Government
(WG), Welsh Local
Government Association
(WLGA), Audit Wales
and Commissioners to
instil good practice.

November 2024

Head of Policy
and Business
Administration

SWWCJC Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2024-2028 Draft




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

End of Document

K(/"A Cyngor Abertawe  Cyngor Sir 685
I\ Swansea Council Carmarthenshire

f County Council

'\l % (yngor Castelknedd Port Talbot
NN/ Neath Port Talbot Councl
w

Pdge 93

Por¢ Cenediaothol
Arfordir Peniro
Pembrokeshire Coost
Nationa! Park

N Bannau
w Brycheiniog



This page is intentionally left blank



South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee

(SWWCJC)

Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028 version 002

Integrated Impact Assessment

March 2024 Final



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

L. OVEIVIEW tireeiiiiiienetiisinenenisssssessssssssessssssssesssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssasssssnsasss 5
2. Details Of the INITALIVE..uuiiiiiiiiiiiirrnerreiiiiinssnereressssssssssassessssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssnns 6
2.1 Title Of the INITIATIVE: oo 6
2.2 Brief over of the function/s of the South West Wales Corporate Joint
COMMILLEE (SWWECIC) ..ttt ettt e e st et essaesaeeteesnesseensesnnans 6
2.3 Summary Of the INIIALIVE: ....ccioeeeeeee e 6
2.4 s this a ‘strategic deCiSIiON’?..............ccv i 7
2.5 Who is directly affected by this iNitiative? ... 7
2.6  When and how were people CONSUItEA? .......ocoeiieiieiieieceeeeeeee e 7
2.7 What were the outcomes of the consultation?.........cccocevvevivieneecescereeeene 8
G T Vo L= o T o TR 9
3.1 What evidence was used in assessing the initiative? ........cccceeveveeceveeceennnn, 9
A, EQUALITIES tirieeerceeereiiiiiiiiissnnneeentiinisssssssnnsessssssssssssssnssessssssssssssssnssessssssssssssssnnsssssssss 11
4.1 How does this initiative impact on the people who share a protected
CRATACTEIISTIC? ettt st b ettt e b e b e 11
4.2 What action will be taken to improve or mitigate negative impacts?......14
5. Public Sector EqUAality DULY ..iiciiiceerrrneeeriiiiiniicssnnneeesissssisssssssnssesssssssssssssssnsessssses 15
5.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector
EQUATTEY DULY 2 oottt ettt sttt e s esseeseenaesneeseensesneenseeneas 15
5.2 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? .16
6. SOCIO ECONOMIC DULY wuerriiiiiiiiiiisrsnnnenniiiiisissssssnnnsenssessssssssssnsssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssns 17
6.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?
.................................................................................................................................................. 18
7. Community Cohesion/Social EXCIUSION/POVErtY..ccccevvveereeiiiiiniiisssnnnenenniinssnnnns 19
8. WEISh LANQUAGE cieiiiiieiiieiiiieiiieeeeeeteseeseesessesseesessesessssssssssssssssssssssesssessssassssssssssassanans 21
8.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?
.................................................................................................................................................. 23
9. Biodiversity and the resilience Of ECOSYSIEMS..uiiiiiiiiiiiiirrrnnnneniieiiicccnsneeneeeseens 24
9.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector
2

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 pracg %29%4/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March
2



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

EQUALITY DULY? ettt aee s e ssass e s s ssae s s sesssan e s s ssssans e s sssssnnees 24
9.2 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector
EQUAITTY DULY? ..ttt ettt b e sttt nae b nne s 25

10. Well-being of FUuture GENEerations ....cccccccceeeeeieicccssssnneeeeseessssssssnnessssssssssssssnnnens 26
10.1 How have the five ways of working been applied in the development
OF ThE INITIALIVE? .ottt sttt e et b e 26

11. Monitoring ArrangemeENTS ....eeeeeeiieiiiesissssnneeeieisisssssssssnsasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnsens 29

12.  ASSESSMENT CONCIUSIONS . uiiiiiiiereiiiineesinssneeesssssstessssssssssssssssesssssssssassssssnsanss 30
12.1 Overall ConClUSION = ACHIONS ..oouieiieieeeeeeesee e 34
12.2 Details of the overall conclusion reached in relation to the initiative. ...... 35

IR JR Y o3 1 o 0 36
13.1 What actions are required in relation to obtaining further date/
information, to reduce or remMoVE NEQALIVE.......c.occuevveeiieeeceee e 36
impacts or IMpProve PoSitive IMPACTS? ....ociiirerirereeeeeee e 36

I N o3 1 o ] PR 37

3

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 verfg%og/-?s Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

Version Control

) >

Version Author Job Title Reason for Date
Change
001 Karen Jones Chief Executive 07.12.2022
001a Karen Jones Chief Executive Minor editorial January 2023
amendments
ahead of
consultation
002 Karen Jones Chief Executive 30.05.2023
003 Kristy Tillman Head of Policy Review as part of 08.07.2024
and Business 2023 consultation
Administration

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 pra(g %29%4/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March
2

4



66 abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

1.

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

Overview

This Integrated Impact Assessment (I1A) considers the duties and requirement of the following legislation in order to
inform and ensure effective decision making and compliance:

Equality Act 2010

Welsh Language Standards (N.1) Regulations 2015
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
Environment (Wales) Act 2016

At the meeting of October 11 2022, the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) adopt which is utilised
by Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council.

In order that the SWWCJC can demonstrate that is meeting its public sector duties. The SWWCJC will utilise the IIA
protcocol as a mechanism for considering the impact of proposals at the point of decision. The is already standard
practice within the Constituent Authorities where officers routinely present an assessment of the impact proposals on
duties related to equality; socio-economic characteristics; Welsh language; child poverty; biodiversity and Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 to inform the deliberations of Members.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



00T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

2.1

2.2

2.3

Details of the initiative
Title of the initiative:

South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002
Brief over of the function/s of the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC)

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 (the LGE Act) created the framework for a consistent

mechanism for regional collaboration between government authorities, namely CJC’s. The LGE Act provides for the
establishment of CJC’s through Regulations (CJC Establishment Regulations).

CJC’s will exercise functions relating to strategic development planning and regional transport planning. They will also
be able to do things to promote the economic well-being of their areas. In contrast to other joint committee

arrangements, CJC’s are separate corporate bodies that can employ staff, hold assets and budgets, and undertake
functions.

Summary of the initiative:

The SWWCJC Corporate Plan 2023 -2028 version 002 seeks to; capture progress to date, setout future ambitions in

the form of a vision and the wellbeing objectives — together with an equality objective. It will also allow for the charting of
the progress made in respect of the public sector duties.

The SWWCJC is adopting a proportionate and integrated approach to meeting its public sector duties through the
production of the Corporate Plan as opposed to a series of separate documents.

6
South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

2.4

2.5
o
jab)
«Q
D
=
o
=

2.6

Is this a ‘strategic decision’?

Whilst the remit of the SWWCJC is narrow and prescribed to specific functions and equality objective, the Corporate
Plan outlines the strategic commitment and vision of SWWCJC.

The constituent local authorities will be responsible for satisfying duties and legislative requirements, together with
detailed plans and proposals that emerge from SWWCJC in the future (e.g. Regional Transport Plan, Strategic
Development Plan). Such work will be subject to a specific review of the Integrated Impact Assessment (l1A) protocol as
appropriate.

Who is directly affected by this initiative?

Potentially everyone who lives, works and /or visits the South West Wales Region.

In is envisaged that that plans, policies and programmes will be have the greatest impact, such decisions will be subject
to the Integrated Impact Assessment (II1A) protocol as appropriate.

When and how were people consulted?

This lIA has been developed to support the Corporate Plan. It is considered that a full 1A is required as the Corporate
Plan is deemed as a strategic document.

The Corporate Plan was reported to the SWWCJC in December 2023, with Members giving their approval to undertake
a public consultation thereon in early 2024. The consultation provided useful evidence informing further revisions to the
Corporate Plan. Suggested amendments in relation to proposed actions have been included within the draft Corporate
Plan version two.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



20T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

2.7

Discussions have taken place at officer level to include the regions regeneration directors and lead officers. Advice and
guidance has been attained from sector specific professionals, together with recommendations provided by the
Commissioners for Welsh Language, Equalities and Human Rights, together with Welsh Government’s Biodiversity
Policy Officer.

What were the outcomes of the consultation?

The Corporate Plan adopted for 2023-2028 by the South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee sets out three well-
being objectives. Whilst there are no changes to the objectives set for the Corporate Joint Committee there is a
requirement to review and where necessary update the actions/steps that the Committee proposes to take in 2024-
2025 in pursuit of those objectives, subject to sufficient resources being available.

Consultation was undertaken between 26th January - 18th February 2024 to gain views on the actions/steps proposed
under each of the three wellbeing objectives. Sixteen responses were received.

The responses were carefully considered with suggested amendments to the proposed actions included within the draft
Corporate Plan version 002.

The draft Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028 version 002 (24-25 Priorities) will be presented together with this
document to the SWWCJC 30" July 2024 for a decision.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



€0T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

3.

3.1

Evidence

What evidence was used in assessing the initiative?

Statutory guidance has been produced in respect of Corporate Joint Committee’s (CJC’s). There are a range of matters
listed therein that require the SWWCJC to respond to, notably in respect of the public sector duties. Such matters
include: The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (and setting of Well-being objectives), The Welsh
Language Standards, Equalities and Human Rights, Biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems, together with Freedom of
Information and Child Poverty.

At the meeting held on October 2022, the SWWCJC resolved that the most appropriate method of the meeting its public
sector duties in a proportionate and integrated manner would be via the formation of the initial Corporate Plan. This
enables progress to be captured, together with future ambitions towards the vision for South West Wales 2035 and
wellbeing objectives of SWWCJC.

Specific reference to Biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems Section 6 Duty Plan is embedded within the Corporate
Plan.

When formulating the Corporate Plan, the powers and duties that relate to CJC’s, together with statutory guidance
issued have been reviewed align with constitutional aspects of the SWWCJC.

The key evidential facets/ policy components that informed the Corporate Plan are as follows:

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

Constitutional and Governance arrangements of the SWWCJC (since inception)
Future Wales — The National Plan 2040

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

South West Wales Regional Energy Strategy

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



0T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

Liwbr Newydd: The Wales Transport Strategy 2021

The Swansea Bay City Deal

The 2020 Future Generations Report

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — 7 National Goals and 5 Ways of Working
South West Corporate Joint Committee statutory guidance

Welsh Government — Strategic Equality Plan

Is Wales Fairer 2018

The Nature Recovery Action Plan (NRAP) for Wales

South West Wales Area Statement

Wel-Being Report 2022

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

10



GOT obed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

4. Equalities

4.1 How does this initiative impact on the people who share a protected characteristic?

Protected Characteristic

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

Age

The Regional Economic Delivery Plan (REDP) would
indicate that Wellbeing Objective one of the Corporate
Plan offers particular opportunities around economic
wellbeing, with a view to future job prospects and most
notably with a view to the retention of younger age groups
within the South West Wales region. The review of
economic performance in the region suggests good
progress of recent years, especially in terms of job
creation, however, there is a persistent gap in outcomes
between the region and the rest of the UK. This reflects
the ‘structural’ nature of many of the region’s challenges
linked to the long-term processes of industrial changes
(which in some respects are ongoing) and are shared with
other regions in Wales and the UK. There are a series of
distinctive strengths and opportunities for South West
Wales, especially linked with the region’s energy potential
(particularly green energy and the net zero opportunity)
university-industrial links, strong cultural identity,
environmental assets, and quality of life offer. The REDP
aims to build on these distinctive regional strengths and

11

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-bwyl

Igor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint

South We¢

Committee for
rst Wales

opportunities to develop a more prosperous and resilient
South West Wales economy.

With reference to older age groups, Well-being objective
two of the Corporate Plan offers particular opportunities
around sustainable transport via the production of the
Regional Transport Plan. The Corporate Plan recognises
the Equality statement set out in Liwybr Newydd which is
to make transport services and infrastructure within the
region accessible and inclusive by aiming to remove the
physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic
and economic barriers that present people from using
sustainable transport.

90T obed

Disability

Well-being objective two of the Corporate Plan offers
particular opportunities around sustainable transport via
the production of the Regional Transport Plan. The
Corporate Plan recognises the Equality statement set out
in Liwybr Newydd which is to make transport services and
infrastructure within the region accessible and inclusive by
aiming to remove the physical, attitudinal, environmental,
systemic, linguistic and economic barriers that present
people from using sustainable transport.

Further consultation and engagement will be under during
July — August 2024 to inform the draft Regional Transport
Plan and be subject to the IlA process.

Gender Reassignment

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

12

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint

South West Wales

/0T abed

Marriage and Civil Partnership

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Pregnancy and Maternity

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Race

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Religion or Belief

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

Sex

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

13

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint| Committee for
South West Wales

Sexual Orientation

+/-

Impacts on this group is unknown at this time, with the
consultation feedback not providing any specific
information.

Further engagement and consultation is planned as part of
the SWWCJC Functions.

4.2 What action will be taken to improve or mitigate negative impacts?

It was envisaged that consultation undertaken to the help identify impact of the Corporate Plan and its proposed actions

has upon protected groups.

80T abed

SWWCJC Functions.

The SWWCJC is committed to develop and prepare a Participation Strategy, it is envisaged that this will strengthen and
promote positive impacts and eliminating negative impacts as far as is reasonably practicable associated to the

The SWWCJC is committed to developing their Participation Strategy in accordance with the Corporate and Strategic
Equality Plans to ensure stakeholders within the South West Wales region are consulted and represented, ensuring

a local distinctive evidence base for decisions.

14

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




60T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

5. Public Sector Equality Duty

5.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

To eliminate discrimination, harassment and
victimisation

To advance equality of opportunity between
different groups

To foster good relations between different
groups

With regards to the well-being statement set out within
Section 5 of the Corporate Plan, reference is made to the
commentary provided in regards to the well-being goals.

Economic Well-being and Energy (Well-being
Objective 1): Improved economic inclusion and outcomes
should improve cohesion where linked with programmes
and mechanisms that focus on local community
involvement and engagement.

Transport Plan (Well-being Objective 2): A transport
system that contributes to the wider economic ambitions,
that helps local communities, supports a more sustainable
supply chain, uses the latest innovations and addresses
transport affordability.

Strategic Planning (Well-being Objective 3): A region
where people live and work in towns and cities which are a
focus and springboard for sustainable growth and in
vibrant rural places with access to homes, jobs and
services.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

15



OTT obed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

5.2 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section. The importance of the Regional Transport Plan
reflecting equality of opportunity between those in urban areas and those in rural areas is noted .

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

16



TTT abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

6. Socio Economic Duty

Socio Economic Duty

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

With regards to the well-being statement set out within the
Corporate Plan, reference is made to the commentary
provided in regard to the well-being goals.

Economic Well-being and Energy (Well-being
Objective 1): The REDP recognises the need to build an
‘inclusive growth’ model into the strategy, via efforts to
support skills outcomes, resilience to automation, or
mechanisms to support greater wealth retention within the
community, Also, increasing productivity and economic
growth, to support the creation and safeguarding of more,
better paid jobs, opportunities for business starts and
growth, and further links between the knowledge base and
industry.

Transport Plan (Well-being Objective 2): Good for
people and communities — A transport system that
contributes to a more equal Wales and to a healthier
Wales, that everyone has the confidence to use. Good
places for the economy — A transport system that
contributes to the wider economic ambitions and helps
local communities, supports more sustainable supply
chain, uses the latest innovations and address transport
affordability.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

17



ZTT obed

Cyd
De-orl

-bwyllgor Corfforedig
lewin Cymru

Corporatgq

South

Joint Committee for

West Wales
Strategic Planning (Well-being Objective 3): A region
where people live in distinctive regions that tackle health
and socio- economic inequality through sustainable
growth. A region where people live in places where
prosperity, innovation and culture are promoted — with
world class digital infrastructure.

6.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section. The importance of the Small and Medium
Enterprises is noted.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

18



€TT abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

7. Community Cohesion/Social Exclusion/Poverty

Community Cohesion/Social + Neutral | Why will it have this impact?

Exclusion/Poverty

Community Cohesion + It is anticipated that the three well-being objectives of
the Corporate Plan, individually and combined, will
have a positive impact for individuals and

, . communities alike; increasing social and cultural

Social Exclusion interaction, participation and economic improvement /

+ stability.

Poverty Specific reference is also made to the identification of
an Equality Objective within the Corporate Plan and
the intention to achieve a ‘more equal South West

+ Wales’.

It should also be noted that in reviewing the potential
impact of establishing the CJC’s. the Welsh
Government published impact assessments,
including the Regulatory Impact Assessment and

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

19



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orll

ewin Cymru

Corporatgq

South

yTT obed

Joint Committee for

West Wales

Integrated Impact Assessment. It is considered
therein that aligning strategic planning functions at a
regional level will help underpin / enhance the
economic well-being of a region increasing prosperity
and reducing disadvantage. It is stated that CJC’s
enable planning of key strategic services at a scale
which can underpin the planning delivery of the
specified functions at a national, regional and local
level and support efforts to tackle socio-economic
disadvantage and tackle issues of deprivation.

7.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

20



GTT obed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

8. Welsh Language

Welsh Language

—+

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

What effect does the initiative have on :

e Peoples opportunities to
use the Welsh language

The vision of the Corporate Plan is clear in setting the
corporate direction of travel as shown in this extract
"South West Wales is a place where the Welsh
language is thriving and the region continues to be a
key contributor towards the national target of
achieving a million Welsh speakers by 2050”

A review of the three well-being objectives (Which are
tied to the prescribed functions of the economic well-
being, production of Regional Transport Plan and
Strategic Development Plan) indicate the following
positive interventions:

Economic Well-being and Energy (Well-being
Objective 1): The REDP supports the growth of the
creative economy (also associated with Welsh
language) should directly support, and could be an
important part of the South West Wales investment
proposition. More broadly, there will be an emphasis
on seeking to support the economic vibrancy of the
regio, including principally Welsh speaking
communities.

Transport Plan (Well-being Objective 2): Good for
culture and the Welsh language — A transport system
that supports the Welsh language enables more
people to use sustainable transport to get to arts,

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

21



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporatg Joint Committee for
South West Wales

e Treating the Welsh and
English languages equally

91T abed

sport and cultural activities, and protects and
enhances the historic environment.

Strategic Planning (Well-being Objective 3): A
region where people live in places with thriving Welsh
language.

It should be noted that in preparing the SDP there will
be policy considerations that include Technical
Advice Note 20 — The Welsh Language

The Corporate Plan contains a specific section
(paragraph 8.2) in this matter.

SWWCJC endorsed the principle of adopting
Carmarthenshire County Council’s standards as the
interim policy position. This enabled the Welsh and
English languages to be equally embedded with the
operational and governance arrangements for the
SWWCJC from the outset.

The Corporate Plan is published bilingually. Notable
within the Corporate Plan is the reference to
budgeting with a dedicated budget for translation.

SWWCJC are currently implemented the standards
as defined within the Welsh Language Standards
Compliance Notice.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

22



/TT abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

8.1 What action will be taken improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Feedback from the formal consultation sought to further inform this section. We will continue to monitor and implement the
standards and report as appropriate.

We will continue to liaise with the Welsh Language Commissioner’s office and officers representing our partners, to
implement and promote the standards as set out within the compliance notice.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

23



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

9. Biodiversity and the resilience of ecosystems
9.1 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?

Biodiversity Duty

+

Neutral

Why will it have this impact?

To main and enhance biodiversity

+

The Corporate Plan makes clear reference to The
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. As one of the public
authorities subject to the Biodiversity and Resilience of
Ecosystems Duty, the SWWCJC is required to seek to
maintain and enhance biodiversity so far as is consistent
with the proper exercise of its functions and in doing so
promote the resilience of ecosystems. In this regard, the
SWWCJC takes a proactive approach by embedding a
Plan setting out what it proposes to do to comply with the
Section 6 Duty as outlined with the Corporate Plan. The
Corporate Plan provides commitment for the detailed
areas of policy and strategy that will follow.

gTT obed

i.e. supporting protection of the wider
environment, such as air quality, flood
alleviation etc..

To promote the resilience of ecosystems,

At a high level, it should be noted that the vision of plan is
clear, notably the reference to “The need to enhance the
well-being of future generations and ecosystems is firmly
embedded within decision making structures that are
balanced and inclusive and which recognise the need to
sustainably manage our natural resources and reduce
pollution resulting in place with biodiverse, resilient and
connected ecosystems”.

The approach in the Corporate Plan is on embedding the
consideration of public sector duties into the corporate
governance of the SWWCJC, noting the specific functions
and the fact that the work will be undertaken (e.g.
Strategic Development Plan) that will be subject to
rigorous scrutiny in terms of destinations (including
National Site Network) together with policy alignment e.g.
Technical Advice Note 5 Nature Conservation and
Planning.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

24



6TT abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

9.2 How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?

We will utilise the 1A to review and where relevant seek to identify mitigation in regard to the review potential negative
impacts.

The importance of the historic landscape and built heritage, as well as a sustainable and engaged agricultural sector is
appreciated.

We will continue to monitor and implement the use f the Section 6 Duty Plan and report as appropriate.

There is ongoing dialogue with regional ecologists and Welsh Government biodiversity policy officers.

25
South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



02T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

10.

10.1

) >

Well-being of Future Generations

How have the five ways of working been applied in the development of the initiative?

Ways of Working

Details

Long term — 10yrs (up to 25
years)

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.1 of the plan reference is
made “the recognition of the importance of future generation is implicit within our vision
and well-being objectives, most notably in the fact that the vision (as such the objectives
designed to deliver the vision) are framed within a time bund context i.e’South West
Wales 2035’. Our well-being objectives have also informed our equality objective”.

Prevention — preventing
problems occurring or getting
worse

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.2 of the plan reference is
made “The National well-being goals have played a key role in the identification of the
SWWCJC well-being objectives”. In this regard, Table 1 of the Corporate Plan
undertakes a detailed review whilst recognizing that direct contributions will be made
towards those goals that are most aligned with the powers and duties available to the
SWWCJC.

Collaboration - working with
other services internal or
external

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.3 confirmation that the
Corporate Plan itself was subject to consultation.

26

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




De-

Sou

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
rllewin Cymru
Corpofate Joint Committee for
th West Wales

iv. Involvement - involving people,
ensuring they reflect the diversity
of the population

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.4 “Collaboration is at the very
essence of the SWWCJC way f working, from the way it is constituted (i.e. leaders of
the region’s Councils) to the manner which it is seeking to establish co-opted and
advisory framework function”. 1t is to be noted that all three of the well-being objectives
within the Corporate Plan refer to collaboration.

T¢T abed

V. Integration — making
connections to maximise
contribution to;

The Constituent Councils are bound the duties and requirement of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Section 5 of the Corporate Plan set out a well-
being statement for the SWWCJC, notably within para 5.2.5 “ We have put in place a
clear flow and delivery pathway from the issues/policy review, through the vision and
onto the three Well-being objectives themselves. We know where we need to get to and
how we are going to get there. We are confident that the well-being objectives are
specific, measurable, attainable and relevant ( i.e. we have duties and/or powers to
deliver upon them by 2035) because they are legally deliverable and they also stem
from an appreciation of the key issues, challenges and opportunities the we face in
South West Wales”.

Constituent Councils Well-being
objectives

The Corporate Plan contains a well-being statement which contains the following
statement “The preparation of this Corporate Plan has engendered an increased
awareness of the need for us to develop a Participation Strategy. In noting that the
Constituent Councils will have their own strategies and engagement exercise, we do
have an opportunity to develop an approach which is proportionate and does not
duplicate existing provisions with the region”. Also the following “In undertaking our
functions, we are actively embedding the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 (five ways of working) within our corporate governance. Setting our own well-
being objectives, we note the need to have regards to Well-being Plan across the
region. We will seek to work in an integrated and collaborative way and recognize the
significant amount of workk that has been achieved to date by the Councils and Public
Service Bards across the region”.

27

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




De-

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
rllewin Cymru

Corpofate Joint Committee for

Sou

th West Wales

Other public bodies Objectives The Corporate Plan contains a well-being statement which contains the following
statement “ Whilst setting our own well-being objectives, we need to have regard to the
Well-being Plan already in place across the region as part of a collaborative and
integrated approach”

2eT abed

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

28



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

11. Monitoring Arrangements

Information on the monitoring arrangement on the impact of the initiative on Equalities, Community
Cohesion, Welsh Language Measure, The Biodiversity Duty and he Well-being Objectives

11.1 Section 9 of the Corporate Plan sets out a performance management commentary. An annual report will be produced.
each year which will consider whether the well-being objectives remain appropriate. Where necessary, the well-being
objectives and improvement priorities will be revised. We will be required to report on progress we made in meeting
our well-being objectives for the preceding financial year.

;? In preparing the report, we must review the well-being objectives to demonstrate that:
«Q
® o Our well-being objectives are contributing to the achievement of the well-being goals.
B o We are taking all reasonable steps to meet our well-being objectives.
w o Our well-being objectives are consistent with the sustainable development principles.
11.2 The four subcommittees with established Terms of Reference will have a role in driving forward the delivery of the
three well-being objectives. The Annual Report reviewed at Overview and Scrutiny, together with Governance and
Audit Committees with SWWCJC responsible for approvals.
11.3

The Annual Report will be published and communicated as appropriate.

29
South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

12. Assessment Conclusions

Subject

Conclusion

Equalities

Socio Economic Disadvantage

Community Cohesion/ Social
Exclusion/ Poverty

Welsh

v2T obed

Biodiversity

Well-being of Future
Generations

The Corporate Plan adopted for 2023-2028 by the South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee sets out three well-being objectives. Whilst there are no changes to the
objectives set for the Corporate Joint Committee there is a requirement to review and
where necessary update the actions/steps that the Committee proposes to take in
2024-2025 in pursuit of those objectives, subject to sufficient resources being
available.

This IIA has been reviewed in light of the consultation. Further to the consultation
responses received, it is not considered that any change.

The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) hold the views and
interests of the those living, working and visiting the region at the heart of our
decisions.

We endeavour to promote an active and holistic approach to promote sustainable
futures amongst the region and indeed for Wales. Engagement with our stakeholders
is vital, whilst we engage using several methods and approaches, the views of our
communities are especially important to ensure representation.

The proposed steps will be refined in light of consultation responses received and a
final set of proposed actions/steps will be submitted to the SWWCJC for approval as
part of the corporate planning process. The final proposal will include timescales,
resource allocations and the means of monitoring progress.

30

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




Cyd-

bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate

South

GeT obed

Joint Committee for

West Wales

p

The views and suggestions gained from the consultation will aid and refine the action
plan for each objective, received suggestions for adoption are as follows:

Wellbeing Objective 1 Economic Wellbeing and Energy

. Further consideration will be given to the views and suggestions received from
the consultation.
. The need to ensure balance and proportionality towards achieving Net Zero,

without impacting the economy.
Net Zero targets need to be proportionate to the locality without impacting the
local economy and added impoverishment.

. Promote wider opportunities for funding and business startups
Note. The Regeneration Directors Group are covering this opportunity in
accordance with the Regional Economic Delivery
Plan (REDP

Wellbeing Objective 2 Regional Transport Plan (RTP)

. Further consideration will be given to the views and suggestions received from
the consultation.

Note. Consideration will be given to how RTP integrates and aligns with plans
to develop the strategic ports of Milford Haven and Port Talbot and also
how the RTP integrates and aligns with plan to develop the wider
network of ports and airports in the region.

. Improve the availability of bus services within rural areas

31

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-

bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South

9¢T obed

West Wales

» Improve public engagement to ensure the barriers associated with accessing
public transport can be voiced

Wellbeing Objective 3 Strategic Development Plan (SDP)

. Start the development without final guidance
Note. This would not be appropriate as there is reliance upon the South West
Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) to secure funding from
Welsh Government to initiate the Strategic Development Plan process
in accordance with the guidance.

However, steps are being taken to develop the Replacement Local
Development Plan (RLDP) and the Regional Transport Plan (RTP) in a
way that will start to create the evidence base to support the Strategic
Development Plan (SDP).

. Listen to the electorate
Note. The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (SWWCJC) will
undertake consultation and engagement throughout preparation and
development of the Strategic Development Plan, as a mandatory
requirement.

. Accountability for projects

Note. The purpose of the Strategic Development Plan has focus on issues that
cross Local Planning Authority boundaries and will consider how people
in each of the four regions in Wales go about their day to day lives to
include working and commuting patterns to shopping and leisure
activities. The SDP does not cover the delivery of projects.

. Consider the long-term objectives for jobs and businesses, together with

32

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



Cyd-

bwyllgor Corfforedig

De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South

/2T abed

West Wales

attracting larger enterprises.
Note. These objectives are already included within the Local Development
Plans.

Ensure engagement and collaboration processes & systems are incorporated
Note. These processes are adopted as statutory requirements of the Local
Development Plan making process.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

12.1 Overall Conclusion — Actions

Actions

Justification

Continue as planned

All opportunities have been maximised with no significant concerns

Continue to monitor progress, challenges and opportunities.
Reporting to continue via the Subcommittees, together with
SWWCJC Programme Board and Steering Group.

Continue - Make Adjustments subject to an approved
Improvement Plan

Potential problems/missed opportunities/negative impacts have been
identified.

Improvement Plan approved and implemented.

8¢T obed

Suspend — Review, develop and implement an
improvement plan

Significant shortfalls or noncompliance suspected / identified.

Consider suspending existing activity subject to adopting a risk
based approach.

Suspend new decisions/ activity until such time the that the
SWWCJC endorses Improvement Plan.

Develop and approve Improvement Plan.

Redraft the initiative and introduce an interim monitoring regime.

34

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)



6¢T abed

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

12.2 Details of the overall conclusion reached in relation to the initiative.
There are no concerns in respect of this IIA informed by the Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 and findings of the

consultation of the proposed actions for 24/25.

The recommended action is to continue as planned.

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)

35



0¢T abed

De-orllewin Cymru

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

13. Actions

13.1 What actions are required in relation to obtaining further date/ information, to reduce or remove negative
impacts or improve positive impacts?

Action/s

Who will be responsible for
ensuring the action?

When will the action be
done?

How will we know the
action has been
successful?

Continue to monitor
progress, whilst

Reginal Directors reporting to the
Sub Committees and SWWCJC

Ongoing — Minimum
frequency as per cycle of

Chair person together with
CEO will monitor

Strategy

Administration and SWWCJC
CEO

Final Draft December 2024

mitigating challenges | Programme Board and Steering meetings 2024/25
and maximising Group
opportunity
Develop the Strategic | Head of Policy and Business Draft July 2024 Endorsement of SWWCJC
Equality Plan Administration and SWWCJC Final Draft September 204 September 2024
CEO
Develop Participation | Head of Policy and Business Draft October 2024 Endorsement of SWWCJC

December 2024

Consultation

Regional Directors with prior
approval to consult for SWWCJC

Ongoing — Prior to
significant decision making

Integrated Impact
Assessment (IIA) process
outlined within all reports
to SWWCJC

Integrated Impact
Assessment (lIA)

All officers and members
preparing reports

Ongoing — Prior to
significant decision making

Integrated Impact
Assessment (IIA) process
outlined within all reports
to SWWCJC

36

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

14. Actions

Name

Position

Signature

Date

Completed by

Kristy Tillman on
behalf of Will Bramble
CEO for SWWCJC

Head of Policy and
Business
Administration

K Tillman

08.07.2024

Endorsed and
approved

TET abed

South West Wales CJC — Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version 002 2024/25 Priorities — Integrated Impact Assessment (003 March 2024)




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE
12" September 2024
Report of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)

Report Title: South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Annual
Return 2023/24

Purpose of Report To provide the Joint Committee with
the South West Wales Corporate
Joint Committee Annual Return for
year ended 2023/24.

Recommendation That the Joint Committee approve the
South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee Annual Return for year
ended 2023/24.

Report Author Chris Moore
Finance Officer Chris Moore
Legal Officer Craig Griffiths
Background:

1.1 The SWWCJC was formally constituted on 13" January 2022. Carmarthenshire
County Council is acting as the Accountable Body responsible for discharging the
councils’ obligations in relation to the South-West Wales Corporate Joint Committee
(SWWCJC).

1.2  On 24" January 2023 the SWWCJC agreed that for 2023/24 a budget be set at
£617.7k with the corresponding levy raised. Members were informed that there were
four clear work streams of the Corporate Joint Committee, and each had been
allocated £20k; the report set out that £140k had also been set aside for planning
and programme management.

Statement of Accounts 2023/24:

2.1 The Statement of Accounts in the form of an annual return, present financial
information for the financial year 2023/24, as required by legislation. For joint

1
Page 133



2.2

2.3

2.4

committees with income and expenditure below £2.5 million, the requirement is that
accounts are prepared in the form of an annual return. The Joint Committee
expenditure of the SWWCJC for 2023/24 is £327.2k. Levies raised on the 4 constituent
local authorities generated income of £617.7k. A £124.1k Welsh Government grant
was received during 2023-24 to support the progress of the Transport Sub Committee.
The Outturn in Appendix A shows an underspend of £458.7k against the budget with
the balance being transferred to the SWWCJC reserve.

The main variances are:
2.2.1 The Joint Committee was overspent by £20.8k due to an adjustment relating
to an invoice from a prior year.

2.2.2 The Accountable Body is underspent by £17.9k in respect of audit costs, due
to minimal activity hence there is no requirement for an audit of a statement of
accounts.

2.2.3 Governance and Internal Audit is underspent by £18.9k again due to minimal
activity hence less Internal Audit work and Sub-Committee Support Costs &
Expenses from Pembrokeshire County Council.

2.2.4 Support Services is underspent by £65k mainly as the Senior Accountant post
has not been filled due to the requirement not being needed yet, along with less HR
support needed.

2.2.5 Sub Committee expenditure was underspent by £95.9k due to minimal activity
of the Sub Committees.

2.2.6 The Regional Management Office is underspent by £105.2k mainly due to
the Business Manager post not been filled until February 2024, Consultancy and
Specialist Adviser work has not been commissioned and Translation Services
were used minimally.

2.2.7 The Provision for Contingency/Reserves was therefore not needed.

A reserve has been set up for the £458.7k underspend.

No Annual Governance Statement has been produced for 2023/24 due to not being
required.

Annual Return:

3.1

3.2

For joint committees with income and expenditure below £2.5 million, the requirement
is that accounts are prepared in the form of an annual return. The Joint Committee
expenditure of the SWWCJC for 2023/24 is £327.2k.

The Annual Return, in Appendix B, is split into the following sections:

e Accounting Statement 2023/24 — including a statement of income and expenditure
/ receipts and payments and a statement of balances.

e Annual Governance Statement.

2
Page 134



e Committee approval and certification.
e Annual Internal Audit report.

Financial Impacts:

The financial statements attached have been prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practice.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

The CJC is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic
duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language
(Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

o Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Acts.

o Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

o Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who do not.

o Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-economic
disadvantage.

o Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language.

o Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

o Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales
must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of
improving the economic, social, environmental, and cultural well-being of Wales by taking

action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the
‘well-being goals.’

Workforce Impacts:

There are no workforce impacts for this report.
Legal Impacts:

The SWWCJC is responsible to prepare Statement of Accounts in accordance with legislation
and failure to do so would render the SWWCJC in breach of its obligations.

3
Page 135



Risk Management Impacts:

The SWWCJC is responsible for putting appropriate Governance arrangements in place for
the management of risk and portfolio delivery. Failure to prepare Statement of Accounts
would result in a breach of legal obligation.

Consultation:

There is no requirement for formal consultation however, constituent authorities have been
consulted.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To receive for approval the annual return for the SWWCJC for financial year 2023/24.

Implementation of Decision:

With immediate effect.

Appendices:

Appendix A — Outturn 2023/24

Appendix B — South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Annual Return for year ended
31st March 2023/24

List of Background Papers: None

4
Page 136



Appendix A

CingorSi West Wales Corporate Joint Committee

Carmarthenshire Outturn
County Council Financial Year 2023/24

Expenditure

Joint Committee

Democratic Services

Democratic, Scrutiny and Legal Support Costs 73,700 87,800 |- 14,100 | Provided by NPT
Democratic Services Total 73,700 87,800 |- 14,100
Legal and Governance
Monitoring Officer and Service Support 18,700 17,000 1,700 | Provided by NPT
Legal and Governance Total 18,700 17,000 1,700
Accountable Body
Audit Wales Financial Audit 22,000 4,104 17,896
Section 151 Officer Recharge 20,693 20,693 - Provided by CCC
Accountable Body Total 42,693 24,797 17,896
Governance & Internal Audit
Internal Audit 22,000 14,600 7,400 | Provided by Pembs
Sub-Committee Support Costs & Expenses 16,500 5,000 11,500 | Provided by Pembs
Governance & Internal Audit Total 38,500 19,600 18,900
Support Services
ICT & Data Protection Services 22,000 20,000 2,000 | Provided by NPT
Financial Services 57,009 5,000 52,009 | Provided by CCC
HR Services 11,000 - 11,000 | Provided by NPT
Support Services Total 90,009 25,000 65,009
Joint Committee Total 263,602 174,197 89,405
Joint Scrutiny Committee
Room Hire - - - Included within Democratic Service costs.
Subsistence & Meeting Expenses - - - Included within Democratic Service costs.
Travel = = = Included within Democratic Service costs.
Democratic, Scrutiny and Legal Support Costs - - - Included within Democratic Service costs.
Joint Scrutiny Committee Total - - -
0] 0] ee
Economic Development SC 20,000 = 20,000
Planning SC 20,000 - 20,000
Transport SC 20,000 - 20,000
Transport SC WG grant funded - 124,106 |- 124,106
Energy SC 20,000 - 20,000
Planning & Programme management 140,000 - 140,000
SWWCJC - Sub Committees Total 220,000 124,106 95,894
Salary (Inc. On-costs) 60,135 27,077 33,058
Training of Staff 1,000 - 1,000
Public Transport - Staff 250 - 250
Staff Travelling Expenses 810 - 810
Admin, Office & Operational Consumables 1,000 75 925
Consultancy and Specialist Adviser Fees 51,206 - 51,206
ICTs & Computer Hardware 1,250 - 1,250
Subsistence & Meetings Expenses 1,000 1,272 |- 272 | includes 2 x Botanic Garden of Wales events

Conferences, Marketing & Advertising - o -
Projects & Activities Expenditure - B -

Translation/Interpret Services 15,000 498 14,502
Printing & Copying 2,500 - 2,500
Regional Management Office Total 134,151 28,922 105,229

Contingency/Reserves
Provision for Contingency/Reserves - - -
Contingency/Reserves Total - - -
Total SWWCJC Expenditure 617,753 327,225 290,528
Funding Contributions
Partner & Other Contribution
Brecon Beacons NPA = = =
Pembrokeshire Coast NPA - - -
Co-Opt Partners - - -
Welsh Government Revenue Grant - 124,106 124,106 | Award of Funding in relation to SWWCJC to develop Regional Transport Plan
interest = 44,101 |- 44,101
- 168,207 |- 168,207

Local Authority Levy

City and County of Swansea Council (Levy) 212,431 212,431 - Levy charged to local authorities based on Population Size

Carmarthenshire County Council (Levy) 168,090 168,090 - Levy charged to local authorities based on Population Size

Neath Port Talbot CBC (Levy) 126,771 126,771 - Levy charged to local authorities based on Population Size

Pembrokeshire County Council (Levy) 110,460 110,460 - Levy charged to local authorities based on Population Size
617,753 617,753 -

Total SWWCJC Income 617,753 785,960 |- 168,207
Provision of Service - Surplus / (Deficit) - 458,735 (458,735)

Description

Balance Brought Forward from previous year - 384,824 -
Net Provision of Service - Surplus / (Deficit) - 458,735 79,116
Balance Carry Forward - 843,559 79,116

5
Page 137



Appendix B

Minor Joint Committees in Wales
Annual Return for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

Accounting statements 2023-24 for:

Mame of SWWCJC: South West Wales Corporate Joint Committes
Committees:
Year ending Noles and guidance .
31 March 31 March Please round all figures to nearast £
2023 2024 Do not leave any boxes blank and report £0 or nil balances.
(E) {E) All figures must agree to the underlying financial records for
the relevant year,

l Staternent of income and expenditure/receipis and payments

1. Balances brought 1] 3484 £24 | Total balances and reserves al the beginning of the year as

fordard racordad in the financial records, Musl agres to line T of the
PreEvious Yeaar.
2. (+} Income frem 575 411 517,753 | Total amownl of income receivedireceivable i the yaar from
Iexzal Lamationlevy | levyicontribution from principal bodiea.
3. (#) Total alher li] 168,207 | Tolal imcame or receipts recorded in the cashbook minus amounts
ecEnts Imcuded in line 2, Inchedes support, discretionany and revenus
ranis.
4. {-) Staff costs 72246 52,770 | Total expendiure or payments made to and on behalf of g
employess. Inciude salariss and wagas, laxable abowances,
FAYE and MI (amgloyees and employvers), pension contributions
and termination costs. Exclude reimbursement of cut-of-pocket
BXPENSES.
5 (=} Loan 0 0| Total expendiure or peyments of capital and interast made during
inberesticapetal the year on extemnal borrowang (if amyh
repayments |

6, (-] Total other 118,341 274,455 | Total expenditure or payments as reconded in the cashbook minus
pEY MEnts staff costs (line 4) ard koan interestcapial repaymenis (line 5).

7. (=) Balances ' 2A4.824 B43,550 | Total balances and reserves at the and of the year. Must egual

camiad fonward {1+2+3) — {4+5+6).

Statement of balances

8. [+) Daebtors 1] 124,106 | Income and sxpenditure accounts anly: Enter tha valua of
debis owed to the Commillee al the year-end,

8. (+) Total cash and ABT 330 471,075 | Al accounts: The sum of all currant and deposit bank accounts,

inveskmsnts cash hoddings and investiments held at 31 March. This must
agres with the reconclled cashbook balance as per the bank
reconcllation,

10, (=} Craditors -2 506 251,622  Income and expenditure accounts only: Erter the value of
manies owed by the Committes (sxcapd borrowing ) al e year-
and,

11. (=} Balances 3B4.824 843 559 | Total balances should equal line 7 abave: Emer Ihe 1ol of

carried forward {B+0-10)

12. Tofal fixed assels i 0 | The assat and investment ragister value of all fixed assets and any

and long-tanm atfver long-term assels hald as at 31 March.
assals
13, Taotal bormowing 0 0 | The outstanding capdal balance as at 31 March of all loans from

third parties {ineluding PYWLE),

6
Page 138



Annual Governance Statement

We acknowledge as the members of the Committee, our responsibility for ensuring thal there is a sound system of
internal control, including the preparafion of the accounting statements. We corfirm, %o the best of our knowladge and
bedief, with respect to the accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, that

1.

We have pui in place amangements for:

» efiective financial management during the year; and |

&  lhe pregaration and approval of the accownting
statemeants.

We have mainiained an adequate systam of intermal
contral, including messyres designed to prevent and
aatect fraud and corruption, and reviewad its
effectiveness.

We have taken all reasonable steps to assure oursehves
that Fhere are no matiers of actual or potential nen-
compliance with laws, reguiations and codes of practice
that cauld have a significant financial efiect on the ability
of the Committes to conduct its busingss or an ks
finanoces.

‘We havve provided proper opportunity for the exerciss of
alectors’ ights in accordance with the requiremesnts of
the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014,

| Agreed?
[ Yes Ho®

[
LG

Yeas |

Yez

I Properly sets its budgel and

| Madea proper arrangements and

YES' means that the Committea:

PG Ref

manages its momsy and prepares
and approves its accounding
slalaments as prescribed by law,

6, 12

accepled responsibliity for
safeguarding the public money and
resources in its charge,

B, 7

Has only dane things that it has the
legal powar to do and has

conformed to codes of practice and
standards In the way it has done s,

Yes

We have carmed out an as.aeam_umt of the fzks facing
the Commities and aken approprals S80S o manage
those risks, incheding the introduction of internal conrols

Yes

Has given all persons interestad the

opporiunity to inspect tha
comimillea's accounts as set oul in

the notice of audi.

Caonsidered the finarcial and oher

risks il faces in the operation of the
Committza and has dealt with tham
propery.

andfor extamal insurancs cowver where required,

We have maintained an adeguate and effective system
al internal audil of the accounting records and control
aystems throughout the year and have recaivad a rpor
from Ehe inbermsal auditor,

We have considered whether any [Higation, labidities or
commilmenis, avents or iransactions, occurming aither
during or after the year-end, have a financial impact on
the Commitise and, whiare appopriate, have included
tham on the accounting statements.

W have taken approprate action on all matters raised
in prendous repoets from intermal and extermal audit.

Yoo

Yas

R

Arranged Tor a competent parsan,

independant of the financial controks
and procedures, ko give an objectve |
wiew on whether these mest the |

needs of the Commitibes. |

Disclosad everyihing it shoukd have
about ity business during the year
imcluding events taking place after
the year-end if ralevant.

- Considersd and taken appropriale |

action lo address
Issuesiweaknesses brought to its
aftantion by both the intermal and

| abarnal auditoes,

6,23

6 8

i

L}

6,823 |

* Plagse provide explanations to the extarmal auditor on & saparate sheet for @ach no’ responsa given; and desoribe what action |s
baing taken o address the weaknesses identifisd,

7
Page 139




Additional disclosure notes*

The following information is provided to assist the reader to understand the accounting statement and/or the Annual
| Governance Slatement

1.

* inciude hare any additicnal disclosures he Commitiee considers necessary to aid the reader's understanding of the accounting
slatement andior the annual govemance statament.

Committee approval and certification

The Commiftee |s responsible for the preparation of the ocounting statements and the annual govemance statement in
acenrdance with the requirements of the Pubiic Audit (Walas) At 2004 (he bct) and the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations

2014.

Certification by the RFO Approval by the Commities
I carlify that the accounting stalemants contalned in this Annual | confirm that these accounting statemants and Annual
Ratum prasant faidy tha financizl postion of the Commities, and | Govermance Statemnt were approved by the Committes
te income and axpenditura, or properly prasent recelpis and undar minute referance:
payments, as the case may be, for the year ended
31 March 2024 Minute ref:
RFD signature: Chair signature:
. M\‘

y |

Mame: T Moora, [ Name:

Date: 'y {'}?/& |1_ Date: B



Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report

I report in respect of my audit of the accounts under section 13 of the Act, whether any matters that come to my
attention give cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have not been met. My audit has
been conducted in accordance with, guidance issued by the Auditor General for Wales.

I certify that | have completed the audit of the Annual Retum for the year ended 31 March 2024 of:
South West Wales Corporate Joint Commitiee

Auditor General's report

Audit opinion - Unqualified
On the basis of my revlew, in my opinion no matters have come to my attention giving cause for concem that inany
material respect, the information reported in this Amual Retum:

« hasnotbeen prepared in accordance with proper practices;

e thatrelevant legidation and reguiatory requirements have not been met;

* is not condstent with the Committes’s governance arangements; and

e that the Committee does nol have proper arangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

Other matters arising and recommen dations
There are no further matiers or recommendations that { wish 1o draw to the Committee's attantion.

External auditor's name: Addan Crompton

Extemal auditor's signature: Date: 12 Seplember 2024

For and on be half of the Auditor General for Wales

9
Page 141



Annual internal audit report to:

Mame of SWWC.JG: South West Wales Corporate Joint Committes
Committea:

The Committee’s intermal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of sk,

has included carrying out & selective assessment of compliance with relavant procedures and controls expected

1o be in operation during the financial year ending 31 March 2024,

The internal audit has been carrled cut in accordance with the Committes’s needs and planned coverage. On the
basis af the findings in the areas examined, the internal audil conclusions are summarised in this table, Set out below
are the objectives of internal contrel 2nd the internal audit conclusions on whether, In all significant respects, the
fallowing control cbjectives were belng achieved throughout the financial year to a standard adequate fo meet the
needs of the Committes.

Agreed ? Qutling of work undertaken as part of
. the internal audit (NB not required if
h i N MNiA
“N ™ ot s | dtalled internal audit report presented
| | to thae Committes) DA—

1. Approprate books of account have Coversd within Internal Audit Number
besan propary kept thrasghout the Yos 24053 By Regional Lead Audit tearm.
year, | 1l pe——

2. Financial regulations have boan | Coverad within Internal Audit Number
met, paymants wers supported by 24053 By Regiona’ Lead Audit tearm.
imsoices, expendilure was approved | Yes
and VAT was appropeiately |
aocountad for.

3. The Commitles assessad the i Covered within Internal Audit Mumber
significant risks to achieving its [ ' 24053 By Ragional Lead Audit taam,
objectives and raviewed the Yes
adeguacy of arrangernents 1o
manage thesa. |

4, The annual precaptevyrescurce Covered within Internal Audit Mumber
demand requiremend rasulted from 24053 By Regional Lead Audit team,
an adequale budgeiary process, Yes
progress against the budget was |
regularly monitored, and resenes |
ware appropriate.

5, Expectod incoms was fully Covered within Internzl Audit Wember
rescehvied, hased on coirect prices, 24053 By Regional Lead Audit team,
praperty recorded and prompily Yas
banked, and VAT was appropriately
accountad for. |

6, Patty cash payments were proparty | Mot Applicabla.
supporied by receipts, expendilure A
was approved and VAT
appropriately accounted for, _ _ |

7. Salares o employess and [ Cowvered within Internal Audit Number
allywances o members were pald 24053 By Regional Lead Audil leam,
in accordance with minuted Yes
approvats, and PAYE and NI
requiremante were propery applied. |

8. Assstand investment registers | Mot Applicable,
wers cofmplele, accurate, and MIA

. proparly maintained, | |
10

Page 142



10

11.

12,

13

Fercdc and year-and bank account

reconciliations were properly caried
ot

Accounting statements prepared
durnng the year were prepared on
I comact accounting basis
(recelpts and payments'income and
axpandiura), agreed with the
cashbook, wers supporied by an
adequate audil trail frem underying
records, and where appropriate,
debiors and creditors were proparly

racorded.

Yeas

b=

es

Cutline of work undertaken as part of

| the internal audit (NB not required if
detailed intarnal audit report presented
Ior Commiibes)

Agreed?
No* WA Mot
covered"”
WA

Mot Applicable.

Covarad within Intermal Audit Number
24053 By Regional Lead Audit team.

For any risk areas identified by the Committee {list any other risk areas below or on separate sheets if needad)
adequate controls existed:

Oustline of work undertaken as part of

Agreed?
o NiA Not the internal awudit {NE. ned reguired if
] we | detailed internal awdit report presentad
| to Commilies)
fdot Applicable.
NI
Mot Applicable,
N7,
Mot Applicablbe.
FLA

T If the response s 'no’, please state the implications and action being lakan to address any weaknesa in control identiflad
{add separate sheets [ needed),
**If the responsa is ‘ot covered’, ploase slate when the most recent intemal audit work was done in this area and when it ks naxt
plannesd, of if coverage is mot required, Infernal audit must explain why nol

Internal audit confirmation

e confiem that as the Committes's intemal auditor, [fwe have not been invohed in a management o administrative role within the
Committee {Including proparation of the accounts) or as a member of the Committes during the financial years 2022-23 and 203.
24. | also confirm that there are no conflicts of interest surrounding my appoiniment.

Hame of parson who carriad out the internal audit: Matt Holder

Signature of person who carried out the internal audit;
Date: 23 July 2024

Page 143




This page is intentionally left blank



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru

Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

)

OUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE (SWWCJC)

jab)
«Q
D
=
D
6]

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
2024-2025

aaaaaaaaaaaaa

~~~~~~~~~~~~

/. Wa}| epuaby



» Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir 653
Swansea ncil

Meeting Date Agenda Item Type Contact Officer
2024
12 September Regional Transport Plan (RTP) Policy Framework (Draft) & Consultation Decision Mark Wade & Stuart Davies
2024 Update
(9.30am) Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Regional Strategic Decision Will Bramble & Kristy Tillman
Equality Plan
SWWCIC Annual Report (23/24) Final Decision Chris Moore
Meeting Date Agenda Item Type Contact Officer
2024
22 October Welsh Language Standards — Compliance Update Decision Will Bramble / Kristy Tillman
2024 (Special)
-@.Oam) SWWCIJC Performance Report 23/24 Information Will Bramble / Kristy Tillman
Q
L(% Audit Wales Letter - Commentary of Corporate Joint Committee Information Chris Moore
- Progress
N
o Quarter 2 Financial Monitoring 2024/25 Information Chris Moore
Private Sector Advisory Board — Appointments Decision Will Bramble
Energy Funding Request Decision Rachel Moxey

County Counci

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port T4
‘W{ Neath Port Talbot Coun
-r

bo m !}nnnkm! .
e S e
al (
L
s Gomadivealiot
coari




Development

» Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir 653
Swansea Council  ¢armarthenshire

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Tlb
Maath Doy

Na Bannau
W Brycheiniog

Meeting Date Agenda Item Type Contact Officer
2024
3 December Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028 — Priorities 2025/26 — Authority to Consult Decision Kristy Tillman
2024
(10am) Draft Regional Transport Plan, Integrated Well-being Appraisal and Decision Stuart Davies
Regional Transport Delivery Plan
Sub Committee Update - Strategic Planning (Consultation) Information Nicola Pearce
Draft Budget Options for 2025/26 Decision Chris Moore
Meeting Date Agenda Item Type Contact Officer
2025
RS
151 January Quarter 3 Financial Monitoring 2024/25 Information Chris Moore
:&Oam)
n Budget for financial year 2025/26 Decision Chris Moore
\l
Energy — Programme Update Information Richard Brown / Rachel
Moxey
Sub-Committee Update — Economic Wellbeing and Economic Information Ainsley Davies/Simon

Davies/Paul Relf

~ounty Counci




Meeting Date Agenda Item Type Contact Officer
2025
18 March 2025 Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028 version 3 — Corporate Priorities 2025/26 Decision Kristy Tillman
(10am)
Annual Report 2024/25 Information Kristy Tillman
Final Regional Transport Plan, Integrated Well-being Appraisal and Decision Mark Wade / Stuart Davies
Regional Transport Delivery Plan
o
Q
«Q
@
|_\
»
0]
Ne Bannau

Cyngor Abertawe Cyngor Sir 653 i
Swansea Council  ¢armarthenshire
_/_ County Council

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbo
N/ Neath Port Talbot Coundil
-

W Brycheiniog




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Regional Transport Plan (RTP) Policy Framework (Draft) and Consultation Update
	App A - SWW RTP Policy Framework final 270824
	App B - SWW RTP Stakeholder Engagement Schedule (23.8.24)
	App C-  Corporate Plan 2023-2028 version002 IIA March 2024 080724

	5 Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Regional Strategic Equality Plan
	App A Joint Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion Strategy (2)
	App B Corporate Plan 23-28 ver002 IIA  080724

	6 South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Annual Return 2023/24
	7 Forward Work Programme

